
Agenda, Regular Board Meeting          December 20, 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

All meetings of the Board will be conducted via teleconference until further notice, 

in accordance with CA AB 361. 

JOIN BY COMPUTER: https://meet.goto.com/586892533 
DIAL-IN (US TOLL-FREE): 1 877 309 2073 
ACCESS CODE: 586-892-533 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-2114.  

(Govt. Code Section 94594.1 and 94594.2 (a)) 

December 20, 2022, at 6:00 pm. 
1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Elected Officials – Oath of Office

• Michel Etchart

• James Kentosh

• Christine Cooper

• Joe Pangea

4. Approval of the minutes: November 15, 2022, Regular Meeting

5. Public comment for items not appearing on the agenda

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item 
of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, provided that no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2.    
Please Note:  If you have comments on a specific agenda item(s), please fill out a comment card 
or send a virtual “chat” note to the Board Secretary. The Board President will call on you for your 
comments at the appropriate time, either before or during the Board’s consideration of that item. 

Page 1 of 143

https://meet.goto.com/586892533
tel:+18773092073,,586892533


Agenda, Regular Board Meeting                                             December 20, 2022   
 

Closed Session Agenda - Adjourn to Closed Session (6:10 pm):  It is the intention of the Board of 
Directors to meet in Closed Session to consider the following items: 
 
6. Closed Session Items 

a) The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters or litigation, 
pursuant to attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code Section 54957, 
54956.8, & 54956.9, and 54957.  

• State Case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Superior Court, Case # CPF-14-513875   
                                                                                                                                                               

Regular Agenda (***Reconvene Regular Meeting, Estimated Time 6:30 pm***) 
 

7. Financial matters 

Approval of Payroll and Payables from November 16, 2022, to December 15, 2022, in the amount   

of: 
Payables – $139,310.21 

 Payroll –  $  46,708.80 

 Total –           $186,019.01 

8. Board action and/or discussion  

a) Discuss customer requests for drought surcharge relief, determine GM threshold for financial 
relief, historically up to $500 per customer account. (Martinez) – No Attachment 
 

b) Customer request for Drought Surcharge relief of $865.00 due to leak. (Martinez) –Attachment 
Recommended Action: Receive report and consider approval of relief. 
 

c) Adoption of New Meters & Expansion of Services Policy with approval of Resolution 20221220. 
(Kentosh/Anderson) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approve Resolution 20221220: Adoption of New Meters & Expansion of 
Services Policy. 
 

d) Approve Will-Serve Letter requests for (1) 235 N. La Luna; (2) 143 S. Padre Juan; (3)  221 N. 
Poli ADU & 221 N Policy Junior ADU; (4) 649 S. La Luna; (5) 935 Devereux; and (6) 1330 S. La 
Luna. (Kentosh/Martinez) – Attachments 
Recommended Action: Consider approval of each Will-Serve Letter request. 
 

e) Approve Casitas Standby Pass-through Fee increase from $0.72 to $1.30. (Ward/Martinez) – 
Attachments 
Recommended Action: Approve pass-through fee change and add to annual rate review. 
 

f) Receive required communication from Fanning & Karrh, CPAs regarding the FY 21-22 Financial 
Audit. (Martinez/Ward) – Attachments 
Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 

g) Receive LAFCo Meiners Oaks Water District Municipal Services Review and SOI Review. 
(Martinez) – Attachments 
Recommended Action: Receive and file. 

Page 2 of 143



Agenda, Regular Board Meeting                                             December 20, 2022   
 

 
9. General Manager’s Report 

The Board will receive an update from the General Manager on District operations and 
maintenance. 
 

10. Board Secretary’s Report  
The Board will receive an update from the Board Secretary on District administrative and 
related matters. 
 

11. Board Committee Reports    

• Executive & Personnel Committee 

• Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency 

• Allocation, New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee 

• Budget & Rate Committee 

• Grants Committee 

• Emergency Management Committee 

• Treatment Plant Design Ad Hoc Committee – Membership to be determined 

12. Old Business  

• State Water update 
• Matilija Dam removal update 
• Collaboration on drought response measures. 

 
13.   Director Announcements/Reports 
 
14.  Adjournment: The next scheduled Regular Board meeting is January 17, 2023. 

Page 3 of 143



OATH OF OFFICE 

(California Government Code §1360) 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } 

     } ss. 

COUNTY OF VENTURA  } 

 

As a Director for the MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

I,__Michel Etchart_________, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of 
the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation 
freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully 
discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter.  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20 day of December, 2022. 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

      Signature & Title 

Page 4 of 143



OATH OF OFFICE 

(California Government Code §1360) 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } 

     } ss. 

COUNTY OF VENTURA  } 

 

As a Director for the MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

I,__James Kentosh_________, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of 
the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation 
freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully 
discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter.  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20 day of December, 2022. 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

      Signature & Title 

Page 5 of 143



OATH OF OFFICE 

(California Government Code §1360) 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } 

     } ss. 

COUNTY OF VENTURA  } 

 

As a Director for the MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

I,__Christy Cooper_________, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of 
the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation 
freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully 
discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter.  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20 day of December, 2022. 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

      Signature & Title 

Page 6 of 143



OATH OF OFFICE 

(California Government Code §1360) 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA } 

     } ss. 

COUNTY OF VENTURA  } 

 

As a Director for the MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

I,__Joe Pangea_________, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of 
the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation 
freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully 
discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter.  

 

 

______________________________________ 

Signature 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20 day of December, 2022. 

 

By: ___________________________________ 

      Signature & Title 

Page 7 of 143



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 15, 2022 

  

 

Regular Meeting        Meiners Oaks Water District 

November 15, 2022        202 W. El Roblar Drive 

6:00 pm         Ojai, CA 93023-2211 

Minutes 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 

1. Call to Order  

The meeting was called to order by the Board President, Mike Etchart, at 6:02 pm via 
teleconference. 

2. Roll Call 

Present: Board President, Mike Etchart, Board Directors: James Kentosh, Christian 
Oakland, Loni Anderson, and Christy Cooper. Staff Present: General Manager, Justin 
Martinez, and Board Secretary, Summer Ward. Attorneys Present: Stuart Nielson.  

Absent: None  

3. Approval of the Minutes 

Approval of October 18, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes. 

Director Cooper made the motion to approve the October 18, 2022, Regular meeting 
minutes. Director Oakland seconded the motion. 

No public comment. 

Cooper/Oakland 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart - Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson – Y Cooper - Y 

(5) Ayes- M/S/C 

4. Public Comments  
• None 

**The Board went into closed session at 6:04 pm** 

5. Closed Session: The Board of Directors held a closed session to discuss litigation, 
pursuant to the attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code 
Sections Ş54957 & 54956.8, 54956.9, and 54957.  
• State case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Supreme Court, Case# CPF-14-513875 

**The Board adjourned closed session at 6:35 pm** 

Page 8 of 143



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 15, 2022 

  

 

Attorney S. Nielson stated that the Board discussed pending litigation in a closed session, 
and no action was taken. 

6. Financial Matters 

Approval of Payroll and Payables from October 16, 2022, to November 15, 2022, in 
the amount of: 

Payables:   $165,017.16 

Payroll:   $  50,208.03 

Total:             $215,225.19 

Director Oakland made the motion to the Payroll and Payables from October 16, 2022, to 
November 15, 2022. Director Cooper seconded the motion. 

No public comment. 

Oakland/Cooper 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart - Y    Kentosh - Y Oakland – Y  Anderson – Y Cooper- Y 

(5) Ayes – M/S/C 

7. Board Discussion/Actions 
 

a. Approve Resolution 20221115: AB 361 – Brown Act: Remote Meetings During a 
State of Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 202201018. (Ward) 
Ms. Ward presented Resolution 20221115: AB 361 - Brown Act: Remote Meetings 
During a State of Emergency, subsequent to Resolution 20221018. This resolution must 
be renewed every 30 days to cover the Committee and the next regular board meetings 
and will be sunsetting in December. 
 
Director Anderson made the motion to approve Resolution 20221115: AB 361 - Brown 
Act: Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency. Director Oakland seconded the 
motion. 
 
No Public Comment. 

Anderson/Oakland 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart – Y      Kentosh – Y      Oakland – Y Anderson – Y Cooper – Y  

(5) Ayes – M/S/C 

 

Page 9 of 143



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 15, 2022 

  

 

b. Notice of Limited Water Availability due to Casitas MWD planned repair on Wed, 
November 16, 2022, from 6:00 am – 10:00 pm. (Martinez)  
Mr. Martinez explained the reason for the notice and its limitations. MOWD has 
adequate storage to last throughout the repair window. Casitas scheduled a repair of 
four valves and will need to de-water the main line. The Districts are requesting that 
customers not irrigate outside during the repair window. Door hanger notices were 
provided to all Agriculture and high users; the District also had a sign outside the office 
and as well as on the website, 

No Public Comment. 

No Motion. 
 

c. Update on Customer request for Drought Surcharge relief of $3,185.00 due to 
leak. (Kentosh/Martinez)  

Director Kentosh presented a review of the customer request for relief of their $3,185 
drought surcharge, a total of 661 units, presented last month. Director Kentosh, Mr. 
Martinez, and Ms. Ward met with the customer to review the account's detailed 
consumption and billing history. It was determined that the leak occurred on the house 
meter and not the orchard meter. Historically, the orchard meter was classified as Ag; 
however, the property was not enrolled in VCAILG when implementing the new 
allocation program. It is recommended that the customer be allowed to enroll in VCAILG 
and reclassify back to Agriculture for the 8 acres of pixies. Director Kentosh does not 
recommend waiving or adjusting the drought surcharge. If the Board agrees to allow the 
customer to reclassify back to Agriculture, the allocation would be adjusted to an annual 
allocation retroactively to July 1, 2022.  

Director Oakland made the motion that subject to enrollment in VCAILG, the customer 
account would reclassify from RES to AG, and the allocation would be based on the 
Allocation Program, retroactive to July 1, 2022. Director Cooper seconded the motion. 

No Public Comment. 

Oakland/Cooper 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart – Y      Kentosh – Y      Oakland – Y Anderson – Y Cooper – Y  

(5) Ayes – M/S/C 

 

d. Approve Will-Serve Letter requests for (1) 235 N. La Luna; (2) 143 S. Padre Juan; 
(3) 221 N. Poli; (4) 649 S. La Luna. (Kentosh/Martinez) – TABLED 
 
 

Page 10 of 143



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 15, 2022 

  

 

 
e. Discussion of 50% Treatment Plant Design Plans submitted by MKN Associates. 

(Kentosh/Martinez)  
 
Director Kentosh provided a summary of the MKN 50% Treatment Plant design plans, 
specifically cost concerns. The total estimated project cost is $5,445,000. The focus has 
been completing the design plans and seeking funding for shovel-ready projects. There 
was a brief discussion on the requirements for a water treatment plant and the related 
surface water treatment rule. The Board recommended creating an Ad Hoc Committee 
for design options and funding. Director Etchart requested that any interested Directors 
let him know before the next meeting.    
 
No Public Comment. 

No Motion. 

f. Discussion of draft New Meters & Expansion of Services Policy. 
(Kentosh/Anderson) – TABLED 
 

g. Ventura LAFCo Ballot for two positions: (1) Regular Special District Member 4 yr 
term, (2) Special District Alternate Member 4 yr term. (Ward)  
 
Director Etchart introduced the Ventura LAFCo ballots for two positions. Director 
Kentosh stated that he is familiar with some candidates and would like to make motions 
for each position.   
 
Director Kentosh made the motion to vote for Raul Avila for the Regular Special District 
member position. Director Oakland seconded the motion.  
 
No Public Comment. 

Kentosh/Oakland 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart – Y      Kentosh – Y      Oakland – Y Anderson – Y Cooper – Y  

(5) Ayes – M/S/C 

 
Director Kentosh made the motion to vote for Mohammad Hasan for the Alternate 
Regular Special District member position. Director Oakland seconded the motion.  
 
No Public Comment. 

Kentosh/Oakland 

Page 11 of 143



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 15, 2022 

  

 

 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart – Y      Kentosh – Y      Oakland – Y Anderson – Y Cooper – Y  

(5) Ayes – M/S/C 

 
h. Discuss MOWD Annual Holiday Dinner, proposed date 12/16/2022 at Agave 

Maria's Restaurant. (Kentosh/Martinez)  
 
Director Etchart announced it was time to plan the MOWD annual holiday dinner. Staff 
proposed an initial date of Friday, December 16th, at Agave Maria's. After some Board 
discussion regarding availability, a new proposed date of Wednesday, December 21st, 
was given. Ms. Ward will check with staff regarding the new date to ensure the selected 
date works for most of the Board and Staff.   
 
No Public Comment. 

No Motion. 

 
8. General Manager's Report 

Mr. Martinez reported that the Casitas Lake level has dropped to 30%, although Casitas 
is holding off on the decision regarding Stage 4 drought until the new year. The 3rd 
party should mail out the Income Survey for DAC status any day. GIS mapping data has 
been processed and is being uploaded to Ziptility. Additionally, Field Operator Michael 
Neary passed his Treatment 2 certification. Unscheduled work this past month included 
a water main break on Meyer Rd due to poor bedding.  

No Public Comment. 

9. Board Secretary's Report 

Ms. Ward presented the monthly Board Secretary report highlighting that the UVRGA 
well registration packets and quarterly data reporting have been submitted. The 2022 
SWRCB Water Use reporting is in progress, due by February 1, 2023. The FY 21-22 
Financial Audit is in progress. Ms. Ward noted that the increased water rates and 
penalties are shown in the September and October data lines on the billing table. 
November 8, 2022, election information is still pending; the current results show Mike 
Etchart (28.68%), Joe Pangea (25.82%), Jim Kentosh (24.41%), and Helena 
Pasquarella (21.09%).  

No Public Comment. 

 

Page 12 of 143



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 15, 2022 

  

 

10. Board Committee Reports 
• Executive & Personnel Committee: No report. 
• UVRGA: Director Etchart stated the GSA met last week, stated it was a short meeting, 

and there is no update to report.   
• Budget/Rate Committee: No report. 
• Emergency Management Committee: No report.  
• Allocations, New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee: No report. 
• Grants: No report. 

 
11. Old Business 

• State Water: No update.   
• Matilija Dam Removal Update: No update. 
• Collaboration on drought response measures: Director Kentosh reported that Mr. 

Martinez met with Mike Flood, and no decision will be made on Stage 4 until January. 
VRWD will be discussing this with their Board this week. 
 

12. Director Announcements/Reports 
• Director Kentosh: No report.  
• Director Oakland: No report. 
• Director Anderson: No report. She stated that it had been a pleasure serving on the 

Board and working with everyone. 
• Director Cooper: No report. She hopes that Director Anderson will attend the Holiday 

dinner. 
• Director Etchart: No report.   
 

13. Meeting Adjournment 

There being no further business to conduct at this time, Board President Mike Etchart 
adjourned the meeting at 7:58 pm. 

 

     ____________________________   _____________________________ 

     Board Secretary                   Board President 

Page 13 of 143



Page 14 of 143



Page 15 of 143



Page 16 of 143



Page 17 of 143



Page 18 of 143



Page 19 of 143



$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Monthly Expenses Expenses

Capital

Total Expense

1/19 - Wells

12/19 - Gen & Panels

7/2020 Z-2 6" relocation

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Income & Expenses Total Expense

Income

GSA, Tx Plant design, 
memberships

Page 20 of 143



Page 21 of 143



Page 22 of 143



Page 23 of 143



 

  Resolution 20221220 

 
 
 

Resolution 20221220 
 

Adoption of the New Meters & Expansion of Services Policy 
 

WHEREAS, Meiners Oaks Water District wishes to establish a policy which addresses new 
meters and expansion of services, including Will-Serve letters, to replace the previously 
adopted moratorium outlined in Resolution 2015-4-1; and 

 
WHEREAS, in the Spring of 2016 Meiners Oaks Water District declared a Stage 3 drought, 
and has relied annually on its emergency backup supply, Casitas Municipal Water District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Meiners Oaks Water District has prepared a New Meters & Expansion of Services 
policy, and presented the draft policy at Committee and Regular Board meetings for discussion 
and public comments. All comments received were considered during the preparation of the 
final version of the policy; 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Water Code Sections 350, 31026, the Board of Directors of 
MOWD intends to take the necessary steps to reduce water demand and bring it into balance 
with available water supplies, while maintaining compliance with State and Local housing 
regulations; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors as follows: 
 

1. That a water shortage emergency continues to exist within MOWD due to reduced 
water supply availability. That reduced supply is caused by a lack of rainfall, falling 
groundwater and lake levels. 

2. The District’s Resolution 2015-4-1 is rescinded and the New Meters & Expansion of 
Services policy is hereby adopted in its entirety; and. It is expected that the Policy will 
be updated as conditions change, with future amendments to be approved by the Board 
of Directors as needed.  

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of December 2022. 
 
                                                                         
ATTEST:               
      
___________________________    ____________________________ 
Board Secretary       Board President                                                                         
Summer Ward       Michel Etchart                               
 

Page 24 of 143



 
 
 

Meiners Oaks Water District 
 

New Meters and Expansions of Service Policy 
Adopted 12/20/2022 

 
A. Introduction  
This Policy on New Meters and Expansions of Service applies to existing and potential 
customers of Meiners Oaks Water District (MOWD) who wish to build a new residence, 
Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU), or business, or who need a new or larger water meter. The 
following categories are covered:   
 

• A new residence or structure requiring service on an empty lot.   
• A new Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) structure on a lot with a primary residence.   
• Garage conversion into an ADU.  
• Multiple-family dwelling units. 
• Affordable housing.   
• Construction of a new business. 
• Expansion of an existing business.   
• Agricultural demand limits.   
• Lot splits                  

 
This policy describes requirements and procedures for applying for new or larger meters. If all 
applicable conditions are met, Meiners Oaks Water District (MOWD) will provide an Applicant 
with a Will-Serve Letter. A Will-Serve Letter means that MOWD intends to supply water service 
to that parcel for the legal structure(s) referenced in the letter.  
 
As a recent spate of Will-Serve Letter requests has demonstrated, it is difficult to envision 
every possible project configuration.  Therefore, this Policy must be considered a “living 
document,” subject to future revisions by the Board.  It provides only a guide to MOWD’s 
Board, who retain the authority to revise and adjust the Policy and its implementation.  
 
B. Background   
 

• Though the development of this policy was motivated by the current drought (2013-22), 
it is intended for the policy to remain in effect after the drought ends. 

• Due to the State-wide housing shortage, State and local legislators have passed laws to 
ease the construction of new housing and ADUs.  Portions of those laws apply to 
MOWD. 

Page 25 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

2 
 

• MOWD depends on Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas MWD) for backup and 
emergency water supply.Therefore, any water connection to MOWD is also a 
connection to Casitas MWD’s water supply, and appropriate connection and/or 
allocation fees must be paid to Casitas MWD. This policy allows prospective and current 
customers to acquire additional allocation by funding the acquisition of additional 
allocation from Casitas MWD for transfer to MOWD, under limited conditions. 

• MOWD has a limited water allocation from Casitas MWD and has no surplus 
groundwater supply or excess allocation available to support increased demands.  

• The current drought (2013-22) has called into question the safe yield of local 
groundwater and Lake Casitas. This issue is under review and may affect the reliability 
of MOWD's future water supply.  Information developed by the Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Agency will guide this process.   

 
 
Water Supply Limitations on Will-Serve Letters and New Meters 
In October 2013, for the first time ever, MOWD’s wells nearly dried up and we had to rely on Casitas 
MWD for 100% of our water supply.  Such emergency use of water from Lake Casitas has occurred 
several times since then, as the current drought persists.  This exercise has confirmed that MOWD’s 
existing wells, by themselves, cannot provide a guaranteed supply of water for its customers during 
severe droughts.   
 
Meanwhile, the current drought has called into question the safe yield of Lake Casitas – the amount that 
can be withdrawn each year without the lake going dry.  Normally, the projected yield of water 
resources is based on the worst historical drought of record.  Unfortunately, we are now experiencing the 
worst historical drought, and until it ends we cannot be sure of the future safe yield of the lake.   
 
Furthermore, Casitas MWD has been adjusting the estimate of their safe yield.  Their Comprehensive 
Water Resources Plan [Draft Casitas Municipal Water District Comprehensive Water Resources Plan 
(CWRP), by Stantec, Draft, June 8, 2020] analyzes the statistical probability of Lake Casitas going dry.  
The report includes an Appendix E, Draft Analysis of the Risk of Lake Casitas Being Drawn Down to 
the Minimum Pool Level, Technical Memorandum.  Appendix E  estimates a 6% chance of Lake Casitas 
falling below minimum pool, if the water demand reductions of Casitas MWD’s Water Efficiency and 
Allocation Program are attained.  Thus, water from Lake Casitas cannot be 100% guaranteed as a 
backup supply for MOWD. 
 
In consideration of the uncertain reliability of its two major water sources – its wells and Lake Casitas – 
the Board of MOWD has adopted the following policy to regulate the issuance of Will-Serve Letters and 
new meters:   
 
 

Page 26 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

3 
 

For any project proposed by an existing customer, two outcomes are possible:   
 
1)  Existing Allocation is Adequate   
Each MOWD water meter has an assigned baseline water allocation for the property served by the 
meter.  Customers may change their types of water use so long as the total water use does not 
exceed the original allocation amount reduced by drought stage.  For example, a customer may 
supply water to an ADU by removing irrigated landscaping or part of an orchard.   
 
If a customer wishes to build a new structure that requires a Will-Serve Letter from MOWD, then 
the procedures outlined elsewhere in this Policy must be followed.  If MOWD determines that the 
existing baseline allocation is adequate to serve the proposed new structures, along with existing 
water demands on the property, then a conditional Will-Serve Letter may be issued after Board 
approval, and a new meter may be installed after all conditions are met. 
 
2)  Existing Allocation is not Adequate 
If, during review of the project, MOWD staff determine that the existing allocation for a meter is 
not sufficient to support a new dwelling or water use, or if the project Applicant is not an existing 
customer, then the project Applicant would be required to fund the acquisition of additional 
allocation from Casitas MWD, for transfer to MOWD.  However, in recognition of drought-related 
water shortages, such allocation acquisitions and transfers from Casitas MWD will not be allowed 
under either of the following conditions:   
 

During declared Drought Stages 2 through 5, when the level of Lake Casitas falls below 50% 
of capacity on April 1, or is projected to fall below 50% during the following fiscal year (July 1 
through June 30) under average hydrologic conditions.   
 
If and when MOWD has had to rely on Casitas MWD for 100% of its water supply at any time 
during the previous 12 months.   
 

These limitations on new dwellings, meters and expansion of service are referred to in this Policy 
as “Water Supply Limitations.”   
 
When Lake Casitas is over 50% of capacity and MOWD’s wells have been able to supply its 
demand for the preceding 12 months, Project Applicants will be allowed to fund the acquisition of 
additional allocation from Casitas and proceed with their projects as outlined in this policy, subject 
to final Board approval.   
 
Although the project Applicant must fund the additional allocation transferred to MOWD, it is 
important to recognize that MOWD retains its right to manage the allocation for the benefit of all 
of its customers.   

Page 27 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

4 
 

 
 
C. General Conditions and Requirements   
To apply for a new meter and/or a Will-Serve Letter, the following conditions must be met:   
 

• The parcel to be served must be located within the boundaries of Meiners Oaks Water 
District. 

• The lot must be a legal lot that complies with the Subdivision Map Act and Ventura 
County's Subdivision Ordinance and has been issued a Certificate of Compliance.   

• The County of Ventura must fully permit any dwelling or structure to be supplied with 
water.   

• Any proposed new dwelling or structure must receive building permits from the County 
of Ventura before a new or larger meter is installed.   

• Application fees, connection fees, allocation fees, and any other fees due and/or 
required must be paid to MOWD before a meter will be installed. Installation of new 
water service lines will be performed by a MOWD-approved contractor, to be paid by 
the Applicant. 

• The customer must not be in arrears for previous water bills. Payback plans are 
available to help customers pay the amounts owed to the District.   

 
D. Application Process   
Before submitting a formal application, Applicants are encouraged to talk to MOWD staff to 
understand the application process and requirements prior to proceeding. MOWD will inform 
the Applicant of a preliminary estimate of the adequacy of any available water allocation 
already in place for the Applicant's parcel. After MOWD informs the Applicant of existing water 
allocation for the Applicant’s meter, and before an application can proceed further, the 
Applicant must pay a non-refundable application fee to MOWD (See Water Services Policy 
providedin Appendix A).   
 
To request a new meter or a Will-Serve Letter, a Project Applicant must provide MOWD with 
the following information:   
 

• Ventura County Assessor's Parcel Number(s) for affected properties. (Note:  Adjacent 
properties owned by a single landowner may be aggregated for the purpose of 
reassigning water allocations); 

• Street addresses for the affected properties (parcel, lot); 
• MOWD account number(s) for existing water meter(s) (found on your water bills). 
• A brief description of the historic water uses since 2010:  residential, irrigation, orchards, 

pools, etc; 

Page 28 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

5 
 

• A description of changes that will be made to the property:  new dwellings, commercial 
use, etc. The Applicant should provide a plot plan to scale, showing the property's 
existing and future land uses, including future dwellings, structures, and newly irrigated 
areas.   

• An estimate of future water uses on the property, if available. The Applicant should 
understand that water use above the current allocation poses a burden on the entire 
District and its customers and that such use above the current allocation will incur a 
greater cost and, in the event of further drought restrictions, possible limitations to 
service. 

 
In summary, the District should be provided with sufficient information to evaluate the impact of 
the proposed land use on its future water demands. The attached Will-Serve Request Form 
(provided in Appendix B) should be used as a template, with attachments as needed to 
describe the proposed project.   
 
E. Customers' Existing Allocations   
Each of MOWD's existing customer accounts has an assigned water allocation. A customer's 
baseline allocation (before reduction during drought stages) is comprised of fixed and variable 
allocation portions. The fixed allocation is typically 10 HCF/month for a primary residence, 
roughly corresponding to indoor water use, and is normally not reduced during drought stages. 
The variable part of the allocation roughly corresponds to outdoor water use and is reduced 
during drought stages. MOWD's Allocation Program is posted on its website. In addition, 
customers may use the allocation calculator on MOWD's website to confirm the allocation 
assigned to their account number.   
 
F. Determination of Allocation Adequacy   
Before an application is filed with MOWD, a determination should be made by MOWD staff 
whether the Applicant's existing water allocation is adequate to support the new dwelling or 
land use. If the existing allocation is adequate, then the allocation (fixed and variable) will be 
reassigned within the property. Approval by MOWD's Board will be required for the allocation 
reassignment, but no additional allocation will need to be acquired to proceed with the Will-
Serve Letter and new meter, if needed.   
 
As an example of how this works, consider an existing residence on a large lot with a total 
baseline allocation of 300 HCF/year, consisting of 120 HCF/yr fixed allocation and 180 HCF/yr 
of variable allocation. Now suppose the homeowner wishes to build an ADU on the property. 
The fixed allocation for an accessory dwelling is 7 HCF/month or 84 HCF/yr. It turns out that a 
fixed allocation of 84 HCF/yr is equivalent to a variable allocation of 100 HCF/yr over a long-
term drought cycle since the variable allocation is reduced with the drought stage, whereas a 

Page 29 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

6 
 

fixed allocation is not. So, to offset the water use of the proposed ADU, 100 HCF/yr would be 
subtracted from the variable allocation for the property. The results would be as follows:   
 
 

Example of an Allocation Reassignment 
 

 
 
Category of Water Use 

Existing 
Allocation 
(HCF/yr) 

Reassigned 
Allocation 
(HCF/yr) 

Primary dwelling (Fixed) 120 120 
Outdoor irrigation (Variable) 180 80 
ADU (Fixed)  84 
TOTAL 300 284 

HCF = 100 cubic feet = 746 gallons 
 

The above example shows that the property has enough water allocation to support a second 
dwelling (ADU). Therefore, the property owner must reduce outdoor irrigation – or other water 
uses – to offset the water use of the new dwelling.  
 
G. Acquiring Additional Allocation   
In the previous example, a large lot has a sufficient allocation to support a second dwelling. In 
the case of small lots, however, there may not be sufficient irrigation use to offset the new 
water demand of a second dwelling. Therefore, the adequacy of the existing allocation to 
support changes in land use will have to be determined by MOWD on a case-by-case basis.   
 
If a property does not have a sufficient water allocation to support a new dwelling or land use 
by reassigning existing allocations, it is MOWD's policy that an additional allocation may be 
acquired from Casitas MWD when such allocation is available and when the Water Supply 
Limitations previously described are not in effect.  Information on this program can be found in 
Casitas MWD's Water Efficiency and Allocation Program, or WEAP, as cited below and posted 
on their website: 
 

Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP), Prepared by Casitas MWD, May 12, 
2021. The relevant portions of Casitas MWD's WEAP are reproduced below:   
 
4.7 Availability of Allocations 
The determination of supplies being available for issuance of new allocations of water 
shall be made upon staff recommendation at a regular Board of Directors meeting. 
The determination that water is or is not available shall be within the determination of 
the Board of Directors. The determination that a supply is available shall be based 
upon more detailed information about existing supplies, the availability of new 

Page 30 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

7 
 

supplies, new water supply projects, or contracts or proposed contracts for additional 
supplies where, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the supply of water is definite 
enough to provide the assurance to the County of Ventura that there is a forty-year 
supply. 
 
4.8 Allocation for New or Expanded Water Uses 
A customer may request a change to a water allocation assignment for the purposes 
of obtaining new or expanded use of water that is associated with a new building 
permit, new or existing conditional use permit, or agricultural irrigation acreage 
expansion. The approval of an addition or change to the limits of available water 
allocation are subject to the charges for new and/or expanded water allocation.  
 
When the Board of Directors determines that additional new water supplies are 
available, either from the safe yield of the existing CMWD project supply or additional 
new supplies, supplies shall be allocated in accordance with the following criteria: 
No single property owner or Applicant for the given type of service (municipal, 
industrial or agricultural) shall receive a new water allocation greater than 10 percent 
of the total new available supply or the minimum standard residential allocation, 
whichever is greater. If the Applicant's allocation requirements are not fully met, the 
Applicant may maintain a position of priority until more water is available.  
All applicants seeking an allocation shall provide Casitas with a detailed description of 
the project, the use of water for which the water is sought, and information on peak 
flow and annual water requirements. Casitas shall determine meter size and amount of 
allocation based upon reasonable and necessary needs and Casitas' Rates and 
Regulations. 
The amount of water to be allocated shall be at Casitas' sole discretion. The 
assignment of an allocation shall be limited to the availability of water from the Lake 
Casitas safe yield and be based on current water demand factors as adopted by the 
District and as amended. The amount of water required for the project may be 
calculated and submitted for the consideration of Casitas by a civil engineer registered 
in the State of California representing the project proponent.  

 
When the Water Supply Limitations previously described are not in effect, and at the sole 
discretion of MOWD's Board of Directors, the process would generally proceed as follows: 

• The Project Applicant will submit a detailed written application to MOWD, as previously 
described.   

• The Applicant will discuss the project with District staff, who will provide a preliminary 
assessment of the adequacy of available allocations, or whether additional allocation 
must be purchased from Casitas MWD. 

Page 31 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

8 
 

• If the Applicant is still interested in proceeding with an application, they must pay the 
MOWD application fee, and the formal application process will begin.   

• MOWD will advise the Applicant in writing how much additional allocation must be 
acquired from Casitas MWD for the project.   

• MOWD staff would then meet with Casitas MWD and receive some sort of written 
assurance that sufficient additional allocation is currently available for MOWD to acquire 
from Casitas MWD.   

• Once MOWD has heard from Casitas MWD that additional Casitas allocation is 
available and that the Applicant is eligible to fund it. MOWD will provide the Applicant 
with a Conditional Will-Serve Letter. The conditions in the letter will include the 
following:   

o A new or larger meter will only be installed after the Applicant has paid MOWD 
for the new allocation and after MOWD has received full credit for the additional 
allocation transferred from Casitas MWD.   

o The Applicant's water allocation(s) will be formally reassigned only after MOWD 
has received full credit for the additional allocation transferred from Casitas 
MWD.   

 
H. Minimum Allocation To Be Acquired from Casitas MWD  
It is not reasonable to saddle future MOWD customers with unreasonably low allocations. 
Therefore, if the existing allocation is not sufficient to serve a new dwelling, then a minimum 
allocation should be acquired from Casitas MWD when Water Supply Limitations are not in 
effect.  The minimum baseline allocation should be calculated for a property using the 
procedures provided in MOWD's Allocation Program. The existing allocation plus the new 
allocation acquired from Casitas MWD must together be adequate to supply the baseline 
allocation calculated for the property using the Allocation Plan procedures. The calculated 
allocation should consider any irrigable area removed from service due to the footprint of any 
new dwelling or structure.   
 

Example:  Suppose a Project Applicant wishes to construct an ADU on a property with 
120 units of fixed allocation and 90 units of variable allocation. There is not enough 
variable allocation to support the ADU's 100 units of equivalent variable allocation. The 
Applicant might propose acquiring an additional 10 units per year, leaving no allocation 
for outside irrigation. However, in this case, once the threshold for acquiring Casitas 
MWD water is reached, the Applicant would have to fund sufficient allocation from Casitas 
MWD to achieve the allocation for the property that would be calculated using the 
Allocation Program. Suppose the footprint of the ADU reduces the variable allocation from 
90 to 50. Then the allocation amount to be acquired from Casitas MWD would be 120 + 
100 + 50 – (120  + 90) = 60 units.   

 

Page 32 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

9 
 

 
 
I. Conditional Will-Serve Letters 
MOWD's Board may approve a Will-Serve letter with certain conditions. Those conditions 
apply to the installation of the water meter. In general, the meter will be installed after building 
plans are approved by the County, and any allocation transfer from Casitas MWD has been 
finalized.  
 
Until an allocation transfer from Casitas MWD is completed, excess water use from an existing 
meter may be subject to an over-allocation penalty.   
 
J. What if Casitas Has No Allocations Available?   
Casitas MWD's Water Efficiency and Allocation Program, normally posted on Casitas MWD's 
website, provides for the purchase of additional allocations for new dwellings. In recent years, 
the total amount of new allocation has been limited to 10 AF/year of new baseline demand. 
That is not much new demand compared to a pre-drought district-wide demand of nearly 
20,000 AF/yr.   
 
Suppose Casitas MWD does not have sufficient allocation available for purchase. In that case, 
a Project Applicant may have to wait until allocation becomes available in the following year or 
until drought conditions end. The availability of surplus allocation is at the sole discretion of 
Casitas MWD.   
 
K. Separate Meter for an ADU 
We acknowledge that to encourage water conservation it is preferable for a new accessory 
dwelling to have a separate meter from the primary residence.  This is especially true when the 
ADU will be rented.  However, additional meters can cause complexities that vary from 
customer to customer.  Therefore, it is MOWD’s policy to be flexible on the need for an 
additional meter for an ADU.  After evaluating an application, a determination will be made by 
MOWD staff, to be approved by the Board, on whether a project requires a second meter.  The 
Board strongly recommends a customer to install a “submeter” to manage water use by a 
tenant.  The general guidelines of this Policy are as follows:   
 

1.  A stand-alone ADU may require a separate meter for the ADU, when special 
circumstances exist.  
 
2.  An ADU constructed almost entirely within the footprint of an existing structure is not 
normally required to have a second meter. 
 

Page 33 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

10 
 

3.  If a Project Applicant wishes to have a second meter for an ADU constructed within 
the footprint of an existing structure (to manage water used by a renter, for example), 
then the Applicant may request the second meter and pay for its installation.   

 
When a second meter is not required but would help improve water conservation, customers 
are encouraged to install and read their own “sub-meters,” to manage water use by a renter, 
for example.   
 
 
K. Categories of meters within MOWD 
MOWD serves water to existing residential, commercial, and agricultural customers. MOWD's 
policy for will-serve letters, new meters, and expansion of service is discussed below for each 
meter category.   
 

Existing Residential Meters   
The MOWD Board believes that MOWD's Allocation Program is sufficient to supply the 
water needs of a typical family with a reasonable amount of outdoor irrigation. Residential 
customers who need more water to support a business could consider acquiring a 
commercial meter when available. The procedures for acquiring a new commercial meter 
would be followed, including review and approval by the Board of Directors.   
 
Existing Residential Meters – Small Remodels   
Any residential customer with an existing water meter who constructs a remodel, room 
addition, garage conversion, etc., which does not require a will-serve letter from MOWD 
to obtain building permits, may receive water from the existing meter for those new 
purposes. However, no additional water allocation will be granted for those purposes. 
Outside irrigation must be reduced to stay within allocation limits, and the customer would 
pay over-allocation penalties for over-usage of water.  
 
Existing Commercial Meters   
Commercial baseline water allocations are determined as specified by the Allocation 
Program. The Board may approve any justifiable modifications to the allocation amount 
using the waiver process provided in the Allocation Program.  If any existing commercial 
customers plan to expand their business and need to increase their water allocation, and 
when the Water Supply Limitations are not in effect, a customer may fund additional 
allocation from Casitas MWD for transfer to MOWD. 
 
 
 
 

Page 34 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

11 
 

Existing Agricultural Meters   
MOWD serves several agricultural customers. Until we can be assured of an adequate, 
secure water supply in times of drought, MOWD will not encourage or provide for any 
increase in water demand for existing agricultural customers.   
 
Agricultural allocations are determined as specified by the Allocation Program in effect. 
The Board shall approve any modifications to allocation amounts using the waiver 
process provided in the Allocation Program. Except as provided through the waiver 
process of the Allocation Program, no additional allocations may be acquired from MOWD 
or from Casitas MWD by existing agricultural customers.  
 
New Residential Meters   
New residential meters may be provided to new customers with empty lots. If the property 
does not have a MOWD baseline allocation, and when the Water Supply Limitations are 
not in effect, the Project Applicant may fund an allocation from Casitas MWD for transfer 
to MOWD. The new meter will be installed after all fees have been paid. Any new service 
lines must be installed by a MOWD-approved contractor at the customer's expense. 
 
If the proposed project includes a new primary dwelling and an ADU, then the available 
allocation transfer must be adequate for both. Depending on the site layout, the District 
will determine whether two separate water meters will be necessary.  
 
New Stand-Alone Accessory Dwelling Units   
An existing customer may wish to construct a stand-alone ADU separate from the primary 
dwelling. Suppose the existing water allocation can be redistributed between the primary 
dwelling and ADU, with some leftover for outside irrigation. Then the existing allocation is 
adequate, and a Will-Serve Letter may be issued. Depending on the site layout, the 
District will determine whether 2 different water meters and service laterals will be 
necessary.  When the Water Supply Limitations are not in effect, the customer may fund 
additional allocation from Casitas MWD for transfer to MOWD. 
 
New ADU Conversion   
If a new ADU is constructed mostly within the footprint of an existing dwelling, as 
described in Section 65852.2 of the CA Government Code and Ventura County 
Ordinance 2020-003, and  if the water allocation assigned to the parcel is adequate to 
support a new ADU,  then MOWD will issue a Will-Serve letter. This will not require a 
separate meter and water service line for the ADU. No connection fee will be charged. If 
the customer wishes MOWD to install a separate sub-meter for convenience, that would 
be done at the customer's expense.  
 

Page 35 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

12 
 

If a Project Applicant’s existing baseline allocation is not sufficient to support a new ADU 
conversion, then additional allocation may be acquired from Casitas MWD, subject to the 
Water Supply Limitations described in this Policy.   
 
 
New Tiny Homes  
Tiny homes (under 500 SF) with permanent foundations will be treated the same as other 
types of homes, whether existing or new, primary or secondary residences, ADU, etc., 
except that the monthly fixed baseline allocation will be set at 5 Units/mo, as established 
in the Allocation Program. This policy applies only to County-permitted tiny homes.   
 
New Commercial Meters   
A Project Applicant may receive a new commercial meter to support a new or expanded 
business. If the property does not have a MOWD baseline allocation, the Project 
Applicant will need to fund additional allocation from Casitas MWD when the Water 
Supply Limitations are not in effect, as described in the preceding sections.  
 
New Agricultural Meters 
It is MOWD's policy that MOWD will install no new agricultural meters. An exception may 
be considered when the new meter is a replacement for convenience only and will not 
support additional water demands (above pre-drought levels) nor support increases to 
planted acreage. Any new agriculture within MOWD would have to be supplied from 
private wells until we can be assured of an adequate, secure water supply in times of 
drought.   
 
New Meters for Affordable Housing Multiple-Family Dwellings   
Considering the current housing shortage in California, MOWD will consider issuing Will-
Serve Letters on a case-by-case basis for new multiple-family dwellings or new mobile 
home parks of 5 or more units that dedicate 100% of their units for affordable housing as 
defined in Section 50052.5 of the California Health and Safety Code.   
 
State law requires agencies to prioritize affordable housing, so the steps are provided in 
some detail below. A proposed project would proceed with the following steps:   

 
I. Initial Submittal to MOWD for New Affordable Housing 

The following information shall be submitted to MOWD for approval of the 
MOWD Board for consideration of a Will-Serve Letter:   
 

• A detailed written description of the project; 
• A project site plan; 

Page 36 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

13 
 

• A calculation of the baseline water allocation for that project; 
• A description of water metering arrangements for the project; 
• Any Initial Study or CEQA documents prepared for environmental review; 
• A detailed project schedule; 
• A discussion of any Net Zero Plan for water supply mitigation, including a 

plan that guarantees its long-term maintenance and viability; and 
• A detailed description of what is requested from MOWD. 

 
Before formally submitting this information to MOWD Board, it is recommended 
that the project Applicant  meets with MOWD General Manager and possibly with 
a Board committee at the General Manager's discretion. The General Manager 
may make recommendations of additional information that should be provided.   
 

II. Determination of Project Requirements   
After reviewing the submitted project application, the Board will make a 
determination by voice vote at a regularly scheduled Board meeting whether or 
not  (a) the information is adequate and (b) the proposed project meets MOWD's 
requirements for a Will-Serve Letter for affordable housing, and (c) the project 
would be allowed to proceed to the next stage of the process. The required 
baseline allocation would also be approved, including the amount of allocation to 
be acquired and transferred from Casitas MWD. The Board may impose 
additional requirements on the project at that time. MOWD reserves the right to 
develop its own water demand projections for the project. The Board may impose 
an application fee and a connection fee that reflects the cost of buying into 
existing facilities and developing new well capacity and related facilities.   
 

III. Confirm Allocation Available from Casitas MWD 
MOWD must receive a written notice from Casitas MWD confirming that they will 
approve the purchase of the required baseline allocation by MOWD and, after its 
purchase, a transfer of the baseline allocation to MOWD's account. The amount 
of baseline allocation shall be the larger of the project applicant's County-
approved water demand estimate or a baseline allocation calculated using the 
MOWD Allocation Program then in effect.   
 

IV. Board Approval of the Will-Serve Letter   
Once written confirmation is received by MOWD that Casitas MWD is willing to 
allow the project Applicant to fund the necessary baseline water allocation and to 
transfer that allocation to MOWD (when the Water Supply Limitations are not in 
effect.). MOWD will consider whether to approve the issuance of the Will-Serve 

Page 37 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

14 
 

Letter to the project Applicant. Approval shall be by voice vote at a regularly 
scheduled MOWD Board meeting.   

 
V. Issue Will-Serve Letter   

Once Board approval is obtained, the General Manager will provide the project 
Applicant with a written Will-Serve Letter. The letter will expire after one year but 
may be extended with Board approval. Will-Serve letters are not transferrable 
between property owners, unless preapproved by the MOWD Board. MOWD's 
connection fee must be paid before the meter is installed.   
 

VI. Acquire Allocation from Casitas MWD 
Within one year or more, and if an extension is granted, the project proponent 
shall fund the purchase of a baseline allocation from Casitas MWD, for its 
transfer to MOWD. MOWD is responsible for negotiating a sales agreement with 
Casitas MWD, including cancellation and buyback provisions in case the project 
is abandoned.   
 

VII. Install the Water Meter(s)   
The project's water meter(s) will be installed and activated once the connection 
and allocation fees have been paid, with the service line installed by a District 
approved contractor at the customer's expense, and all other project 
requirements have been met.   
 

VIII. Other Requirements   
 

• To ensure the developer's compliance with MOWD's conditions, MOWD may 
require the developer to provide a suitable bond to ensure conformance.   

• For multiple-family dwelling units, it is preferable for each apartment to have a 
separate water meter. The Homeowners Association may have a separate meter 
for communal landscape irrigation. The total baseline allocation will be distributed 
appropriately among those meters, as determined by MOWD.  

• Will-Serve Letters for new Multiple-Family dwellings will be limited to one per 
year, on a first-come-first-served basis, as established by Step 2 above. 
(Completing Step 2 provides evidence that the project is serious.)  If the quota for 
these projects is filled, the project proponent may wait until space becomes 
available. Nevertheless, to maintain priority, the project proponent must make 
regular progress in advancing the project. Priority will not be granted for projects 
that are not deemed to be serious.  

  

Page 38 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

15 
 

 
L.  Existing ADUs Not Known to MOWD   
From time to time, MOWD learns that a customer has an existing ADU that MOWD was not 
aware of.  It is appropriate to give the customer the benefit of the doubt and to assume that 
they were not aware that additional charges should have been paid for the ADU.  In these 
cases the following will normally be done: 
 

1.  If the ADU was built before 2013, the ADU will be added to MOWD’s database and 
billing system, without connection fees. 
2.  Fixed monthly water charges will be billed for the prior 6 months from the date MOWD 
learned of the ADU, and will continue to be billed into the future. 
3.  An adjustment may be made to the baseline water allocation for the meter, as 
appropriate.   

 
 
L. Unique Customer Conditions 
Some customers may have unique conditions not clearly encompassed within the preceding 
meter categories. For example, some projects might offset existing water demands in some 
way. The Board will consider such unique cases providing a way is found to offset any future 
demand increases above historical levels with reduced irrigation, purchase of allocation from 
Casitas MWD, etc. Applicants must provide a letter explaining their project and its unique 
circumstances.  The Board reserves the authority to allow exceptions or adjustments to this 
Policy.   
 
M. Fire Flow Requirements   
Meiners Oaks Water District provides fire hydrants distributed throughout the District. These 
should be adequate to support most residences and new dwellings. The following 
requirements apply:   

• Suppose a larger water meter is required on a residential or commercial property solely 
to upgrade fire protection to add indoor, automatic fire sprinklers without any other 
expectation of increased water use. In that case, no additional water allocation is 
required, and a more simple application process would be followed. Again, supporting 
documentation should be provided to MOWD by the Project Applicant. 

• The Project Applicant is responsible for ensuring that the nearest fire hydrant's location 
meets any Ventura County Fire Protection District requirements as part of the County 
permitting process.   

• If a new residence requires the installation of a new hydrant, the Applicant will be 
responsible for funding the new hydrants and associated pipelines to existing water 
mains.   

Page 39 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

16 
 

• New residences located high on hillsides, where adequate fire pressures cannot be 
reliably maintained, shall require special consideration. The Project Applicant may be 
required to fund new facilities needed to increase pressure. Alternatively, Applicants 
may need to install their own booster pumps and tanks. The Ventura County Water 
Works Manual requires MOWD only to supply a minimum pressure in the water main, 
not at the residence.   
 

N. Utility Connection Fees and Meter Expenses   
Utility connection fees shall be established by MOWD for new meters or larger meters with 
significant expansions of water service. Those fees are associated with the capital cost of 
producing and delivering water. MOWD does not charge any impact fees as described in 
Section 65852.2 of the Government Code.   
 
In accordance with Section 65852.2 of the Government Code, MOWD charges a connection 
fee for a stand-alone ADU, even if no second meter is installed. In accordance with Section 
65852.2 of the Government Code, MOWD does not charge a connection fee for new ADUs 
built nearly entirely within the footprint of a primary residence.  (State law allows for such an 
ADU to add 150 SF of new construction to improve the entryway.) 
 
A project proponent must also pay to Casitas MWD any applicable connection fees, capacity 
fees or charges, allocation fees, and any other fees and charges required by Casitas MWD.  (A 
connection to MOWD is also an indirect connection to Casitas MWD’s system.)   
 
 
O. Cost of Meters 
The Project Applicant must pay for purchasing and installing any new meter and related 
facilities:  corp-stop, service lateral, isolation valves, to District standards. MOWD will provide a 
list of approved contractors, and the Project Applicant must contract directly with one of them 
to do the work. In addition, the Project Applicant must pay MOWD's inspection fees.   
 
As part of the installation of a new meter, MOWD may require such a meter to be a “smart 
meter,” as defined in specifications to be provided by MOWD.   
 
Once the meter is installed, MOWD will assume the maintenance cost from the water main up 
to and including the meter.  
  

Page 40 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

17 
 

 
P. Other Related Policy Issues 

I. Allocations Subject to Change 
All assigned baseline and reduced drought-stage allocations are subject to change by MOWD 
Board action and as required due to worsening drought, new State laws, changes to the 
policies of Casitas MWD, etc.   
 
 
 

I. Water Use without an Official Allocation 
It is the policy of MOWD that if a customer uses water without an official allocation from 
MOWD, then 100% of that customer's water usage will be subject to the over-allocation 
penalties then in effect. In addition, if a customer has less allocation than necessary to meet 
demands, over-allocation penalties shall be paid for the amount of usage exceeding the 
allocation. This provision also applies when the customer cannot complete a transfer of 
additional allocation from Casitas MWD to MOWD or provide adequate documentation that the 
transfer has been completed.   
 

II. Net Zero Impact of New Development 
As a condition for obtaining approvals for new development, the County of Ventura may 
require a "Net Zero Impact" for a development. MOWD may also impose a Net Zero Impact 
requirement before issuing a Will-Serve Letter. Under that requirement, the developer must 
retrofit other facilities within the MOWD boundaries and provide water conservation off-site 
within the MOWD boundaries to compensate for the proposed water use by the development.   
 
Before MOWD issues a Will-Serve Letter to a developer with a Net-Zero Impact requirement, 
the developer must commit to implementing the associated mitigation within the boundaries of 
MOWD to reduce water demands on MOWD. The Will-Serve Letter will include a condition that 
the meter will not be installed until the mitigations within MOWD have been completed and 
certified by the County.   
 
In addition, a project proponent shall provide a detailed plan that guarantees the long-term 
viability of the Net Zero Impact measures implemented. Approval of this plan by the County 
and by MOWD is required before MOWD will approve a conditional Will-Serve Letter.   
 

III. Validity Dates of Outstanding Will-Serve Letters 
Prior to the current drought, MOWD issued some Will-Serve Letters without expiration dates. 
However, with current water supply limitations, those letters committed MOWD to deliver water 
it does not have available. Therefore, MOWD hereby adopts a policy that all outstanding Will-
Serve Letters without expiration dates will expire (or have expired) 5 years after the date of 

Page 41 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

18 
 

issuance. If a Will-Serve Letter does not have an issue date, MOWD will assign an issue date 
based on associated correspondence.   
 
Once a Will-Serve letter has expired, the Board may consider issuing a new Will-Serve letter to 
that customer with updated terms and conditions incorporating the latest information on 
drought reliability, water allocations, and drought stage. The customer should apply for the 
replacement Will-Serve letter and provide all relevant project information in accordance with 
MOWD New Meters and Expansion of Services Policy in affect at the time. The Board will use 
its discretion to decide whether or not to issue a new letter.   
 

IV. Lot Splits   
MOWD's policy is that additional allocations will not be provided to a customer who has 
completed a lot split after MOWD adopted this policy and its Allocation Program. Note that the 
County does not typically notify MOWD of lot splits. This issue would usually be brought to 
MOWD's attention by a customer requesting revised allocations for the new amended lot(s).   
 
References 
Appendix A: Water Services Policy – Fees 
Appendix B: Will-Serve Request Form 
Appendix C: Explanation of Fixed and Variable Allocation Conversions 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A: Water Services Policy- Fees 
 

New Service Refundable Deposits 

Residential Commercial Agriculture 
$50.00 $75.00 $150.00 

 

Fines for Improper Water Use 

 Stage 1 Stages 2 & 3 Stages 4 & 5 
First Violation No Fine Warning Warning 

Second Violation No Fine $100 $150 
Third Violation No Fine $100 $250 

Page 42 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

19 
 

Fourth Violation No Fine $200 $350 
Fifth Violation No Fine $300 $450 
>5 Violations No Fine $500 $550 

 

Penalties 

Delinquent Payment 25% 
Returned Checks $12 
Reconnect for Non-payment $50   (normal hours) 
 $150 (after hours) 
Failure to Test Backflow $150 
*Customers must provide test results within 14 days of the 3rd request or a fine may be applied and water service 
will be disconnected. Reconnection fees will apply 

 Administrative Fees 

Will-Serve Letter Requests, New Meters or 
Expansion of Service Requests 

$100.00 

 

 Temporary Hydrant Meter (6-month Rental Maximum) 

Deposit $1,000 
Administrative Fee $100 

Usage Charge (per unit) $3.85 
Monthly WAC $36.00 

 
 

 

 

Appendix A: Water Services Policy- Fees 
 

 5/8” & 
¾” 

1” 1.5” 2” 3” 4” 6” 

Customer 
Valves 

$95 $130 $238 $238    

*Meter 
Testing 

$48 $53 $159 $159 $175 $175 $250 

 *Standard shipping rates will be applied 

 

Page 43 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

20 
 

Lock Cutting $150 

Meter Tampering $150 & up 

Fire Flow Testing $300/hydrant  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B: Will-Serve Request Form for Existing Meters 

A “Will-Serve” letter may be issued upon the District’s completion of an analysis determining 
that all conditions of approval are met. 
 

Applicant Information: 
Name:         
 
Company: 
 
Mailing Address: Phone: 

Page 44 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

21 
 

Email: 
 
Project Information: 
Assessor's Parcel Number: Service Address: 

City, State, Zip Code: 
 
Account #: 
 

Planning Department Development case number (if applicable): 
 

Type of Construction: 
 

ConstructionTenant New 
ImprovementADUOther 

 
Type of Use: 

 

ResMulti-Family Res (# of Single Family 
dwellings)Commercial 

 

Description of Project: 
 
 
Required Attachments: 

1. Drawing/sketch of project (with dimensions) 
2. Tax Assessors parcel map that includes the subject property. 
3. Subdivision map covering the location of the project.* 

 
* Clearly indicate all APNs and legal lots involved in the project. Ensure any markups to 
county documents do not obscure the underlying information. 
 I acknowledge that MOWD will bill a $100 nonrefundable Adminstrative Fee. 
 
Applicant SignatureDate 

 
Please allow a minimum of 60 days to evaluate and process this Will Serve letter 
request. The time frame will depend on receipt of satisfactory information from the 
applicant and schedule of pertinent District Committees and Board of Directors 
meetings. 

 
 

Page 45 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C: Explanation of Fixed and Variable Allocation Conversions 
 
Introduction 
MOWD’s Allocation Program provides each water meter with a water allocation that is 
composed of two parts:  a fixed portion that does not normally change with drought stage, and 
a variable portion that is reduced during higher stages of drought.  Because the variable 
portion is reduced with drought stage while the fixed portion is not, these two types of 
allocations differ in their impacts on MOWD’s water supply.  Those differences should be 
considered when re-assigning allocations to allow for new water uses, such as construction of 
an ADU or “granny flat.” 

Page 46 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

23 
 

 
The purpose of this supplemental report is to provide a simple analysis for comparing the 
impacts of fixed and variable allocations.   
 
A Simple Model   
MOWD’s drought stages are based on those of Casitas MWD, which are, in turn, tied to the 
Level of Lake Casitas, as described in their Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP).  
MOWD is required by its water service agreement with Casitas MWD to implement water 
conservation measures equivalent to the WEAP.  The five drought stages are summarized 
below:   
 

Drought 
Stage 

 
Lake Storage 

Mandatory 
Conservation 

1 50% – 100%   0% 
2 40% – 50%   20% 
3 30% – 40%   30% 
4 25% – 30% 40% 
5 < 25% 50% 

 
During each of these drought stages, the variable part of a customer’s baseline allocation is 
reduced by the mandatory conservation amount shown in the table.   
 
The safe yield estimate for Lake Casitas has been based on a 20-year drought period, using 
historical hydrology data.  (See reports by Casitas MWD and others.)  Note that a drought is 
defined to begin in a year that the lake spills.  The year with the lowest lake level – after which 
it begins to refill due to a wetter cycle – defines the end of the 20-year drought.  During any 
long-term drought, there will be some wet years within the predominantly dry years.  The 
simplest model of a 20-year drought can be developed from the following assumptions: 
 

1)  The drought begins with Lake Casitas filled to its maximum storage capacity of 
238,000 acre-feet. 

 
2)  The drought ends in the 20th year at its minimum pool storage of 23,800 AF.   
 
3)  The storage capacity declines at a uniform rate during each year of the drought.    

 
In reality, rainfall will not be uniformly distributed among the 20 drought years.  In addition, 
there are nonlinearities, such as evaporation that declines with lake level.  Nevertheless, it can 
be argued that if 1,000 statistically significant drought cycles were developed and averaged, 
the mean would display a similar monotonical decline in lake level during the drought.  It is 
argued that this simple model is adequate for the purpose of adjusting allocations for ADUs.  

Page 47 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

24 
 

What is important here is to make some sort of adjustment for the sake of fairness to all 
customers, new and old.   
 
Model Results for Fixed Allocations of 84 HCF/yr and 120 HCF/yr 
An Auxiliary Dwelling Unit requires a fixed allocation of 7 HCF/month, or 84 HCF/yr.  (Note that 
1 HCF = 100 cubic feet = 748 gallons.)  The total water use during a 20-year drought is 
compared to the water used by a variable allocation of 98.4 HCF/yr in Table 1.  In the table,  
 

N is the drought year. 
Storage is the amount of water in the lake at the beginning of that year. 
Storage Pct is the storage as a percentage of maximum capacity.   
Stage is drought stage in accordance with the WEAP. 
Usage Allowed is the amount of variable allocation that may be used without penalty at 

that drought stage. 
Fixed is the amount of fixed allocation used each year, which is not reduced during 

drought stage. 
Variable is the amount of the variable allocation that may be used each year, which is 

reduced during drought stages 2 – 5.   
 
Table 1 shows that a fixed allocation of 84 HCF/yr allows a total water usage of 1680 HCF 
over the drought cycle.  By comparison, a variable allocation of 98.4 HCF/yr (chosen by trial 
and error in an Excel spreadsheet) allows a total water usage of 1682.6 HCF during the 
drought – about the same.  If we round off, we can conclude that 84 HCF of fixed allocation is 
equivalent, in terms of drought water usage, to 100 HCF/yr of variable allocation.   
 
If this exercise is repeated for a fixed allocation of 120 HCF/year, then that is shown to be 
equivalent to a variable allocation of 140 HCF/yr in Table 2.   
 

 
 

Table 1 
84 HCF  fixed allocation equivalent to 100 HCF  of variable allocation 

Page 48 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

25 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 49 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

26 
 

 
Table 2 

120 HCF  fixed allocation equivalent to 140 HCF  of variable allocation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 143



New Meters and Expansions of Services Policy 

27 
 

Conclusions 
The conclusions of this analysis are:   
 

To provide allocation for a new ADU, 100 HCF/yr may be subtracted from a property’s 
variable allocation and 84 HCF/yr should be added to the fixed allocation for the ADU. 
 
To provide allocation for a new primary residence, 140 HCF/yr may be subtracted from a 
property’s variable allocation and 120 HCF/yr should be added to the fixed allocation for 
the new primary dwelling. 
 
To provide allocations for other combinations of new uses, the amounts to be subtracted 
from the variable allocation and added to the fixed allocation should be proportional to the 
above.   

 
Note that there are factors in this approach that favor existing customers, most notably being 
the unlikelihood of MOWD’s wells being out of service for an entire water year.  That has never 
happened to date.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51 of 143



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

New Primary Dwelling for Property with Existing Meter at 235 N. La Luna Ave. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of constructing a new single-family, single-story primary dwelling. There Is one 
existing primary dwelling on the parcel, with an existing fixed allocation and MWAC monthly fee.  

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 3.75-acre 
parcel.   

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU?  YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0004 
• Allocation Category: 1" RES meter, 1 Parcel (017-0-040-15) 
• Parcel Size: 3.75 acre (163,350 sq ft) 
• Current base Fixed allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current base Variable allocation: 521 HCF/yr (Stage 3 = 365 HCF/yr) 
• Fixed base allocation needed to support new primary dwelling: 120 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from base variable allocation needed to Support existing ADU through drought stages: 140 

HCF/yr 

If the primary dwellings are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this 
property would be as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  240 HCF/yr (2 Primary Dwellings) 
• New Base Variable Allocation: 381 HCF/yr (Stage 3: 267 HCF/yr) 

Recommendation 

The District was able to perform a dwelling verification check on the property, however, owner confirmed one 
existing primary dwelling. The base allocation for this property supports the additional primary dwelling. 

• Letter applies only to the proposed single-family, single-story residence, as described in the applicant-
provided preliminary site plan with the file date 09-13-2022 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 52 of 143



Page 53 of 143



Page 54 of 143



Page 55 of 143



Page 56 of 143



Page 57 of 143



Page 58 of 143



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

Existing ADU (unaccounted) for Property with Existing Meter at 143 S. Padre Juan 

Proposal 

The request is for a pre-2016 ADU, of which the applicant supplied rental tax records and postal service 
confirmation of the ADU's separate address. The applicant needs will-serve letter to get ADU permitted. There 
will be no construction or changes to the footprint. Customer currently pays MWAC for the other three 
(permitted) dwellings. The 2020 allocation calculation did not Include the 4th dwelling's fixed allocation, as It 
was unaware of the dwelling, and should be granted the allocation that would have been provided at that time. 

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 0.25-acre 
parcel, with 4 dwellings.   

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU?  YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0421 
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 1 Parcel (017-0-142-13) 
• Parcel Size: 0.25 acre (10,890 sq ft) 
• Current base Fixed allocation: 252 HCF/yr (7 HCF/mo x 3 dwellings) 
• Current base Variable allocation: 147 HCF/yr (Stage 3 = 103 HCF/yr) 
• Fixed base allocation needed to support existing non-permitted ADU: 84 HCF/yr 
• There should not be a reduction to the variable allocation, as this building existing prior to 2016.  

If the primary dwellings are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this 
property would be as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  336 HCF/yr (4 Dwellings) 
• New Base Variable Allocation:  147 HCF/yr (Stage 3: 103 HCF/yr) 

Recommendation 

The District was able to perform a dwelling verification check on the property, the owner confirmed three 
existing permitted dwellings (MWAC billed x 3 dwellings), the existing garage ADU was not permitted and not 
billed MWAC nor included in original allocation calculation. The base allocation for this property should be 
adjusted to included the fixed allocation for the fourth dwelling. 

• Letter applies only to the permitting of the existing ADU, as described in the applicant-provided 
preliminary site plan with the file date 10-11-2022. 

Page 59 of 143



• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 60 of 143



Page 61 of 143



Page 62 of 143



Page 63 of 143



Page 64 of 143



Page 65 of 143



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

New ADU for Property with Existing Meter at 221 N. Poli. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of constructing a new Tiny Home ADU, less than 500 sqft.  

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 0.22-acre 
parcel.   

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU?  YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0215 
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 1 Parcel (017-0-061-23) 
• Parcel Size: 0.22 acre (9583 sq ft) 
• Current base Fixed allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current base Variable allocation: 72 HCF/yr (Stage 3 = 50 HCF/yr) 
• Fixed base allocation needed to support new tiny home ADU: 60 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from base variable allocation needed to Support new tiny home ADU through drought stages: 

70 HCF/yr 

If the primary dwellings are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this 
property would be as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  180 HCF/yr (1 Primary & 1 Tiny Home ADU) 
• New Base Variable Allocation: 2 HCF/yr (Stage 3: 0 HCF/yr) 

Recommendation 

The base allocation for this property does not support the new ADU. 

• Letter applies only to the proposed Tiny Home ADU, as described in the applicant-provided preliminary 
site plan with the file date 10-14-2022 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 66 of 143



Page 67 of 143



Page 68 of 143



Page 69 of 143



Page 70 of 143



Page 71 of 143



Page 72 of 143



Page 73 of 143



Page 74 of 143



Page 75 of 143



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

Garage to ADU conversion for Property with Existing Meter at 649 S. La Luna. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of converting an existing garage to an ADU. The property currently has one 
primary dwelling and a pool-house studio (with living space). The customer currently pays one MWAC for the 
primary dwelling. The pool-house studio Is pre-existing to the Allocation Program and was not counted In the 
original fixed dwelling calculations.  

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 0.99-acre 
parcel.   

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU?  YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0993 
• Allocation Category: 1" RES meter, 1 Parcel (018-0-021-21) 
• Parcel Size: 0.99 acre (43,124 sq ft) 
• Current base Fixed allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current base Variable allocation: 300 HCF/yr (Stage 3 = 210 HCF/yr) 
• Fixed base allocation to account for pre-existing pool-house studio: 60 HCF/yr 
• Fixed base allocation needed to support the new ADU: 84 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from base variable allocation needed to Support new ADU through drought stages: 100 

HCF/yr 

If the primary dwellings are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this 
property would be as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  264 HCF/yr (1 Primary, 1 Tiny Home Pool House Studio & 1 new ADU) 
• New Base Variable Allocation: 200 HCF/yr (Stage 3: 140 HCF/yr) 

Recommendation 

The base allocation for this property does support the garage conversion to an ADU. 

• Letter applies only to the proposed garage to ADU conversion, as described in the applicant-provided 
preliminary site plan with the file date 10-20-2022 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 76 of 143



Page 77 of 143



Page 78 of 143



Page 79 of 143



Page 80 of 143



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

Garage Conversion to ADU for Property with Existing Meter at 935 Devereux. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of converting a 400 sqft garage to a "Tiny Home" ADU, with no change to the 
footprint, square footage or roofline. The ADU will have a kitchen and full bath. 

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 0.17-acre 
parcel.   

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU? NO 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0044 
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 1 Parcel 
• Parcel Size: 0.17 acre (7405 sqft) 
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 47 HCF/yr (Stage 3 = 33 HCF/yr) 
• Fixed Base Allocation Needed to Support ADU: 60 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to Support ADU through drought stages: 70 HCF/yr 

If the ADU are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property would be 
as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  180 HCF/yr 
• New Base Variable Allocation: -23 HCF/yr  

Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed ADU as described in the applicant-provided preliminary site plan 
with the file date 11-21-2022 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 81 of 143



Page 82 of 143



Page 83 of 143



Page 84 of 143



Page 85 of 143



Page 86 of 143



Page 87 of 143



Page 88 of 143



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

New 1,600 sqft Primary Dwelling for Property with Existing Meter at 1330 S. La Luna. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of constructing a new 1,600 sqft single-family primary dwelling, on one of three 
parcels. 

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicates three 1.25-acre 
parcels, a total of 4.25 acres.  Parcel usage: 018-0-102-38 proposed building site, existing dwelling on 018-0-102-
37 and empty parcel 018-0-102-36. There was previously a 4th parcel 018-0-102-39, originally the account 
holder for all parcels, separated In 2021. 

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support a Primary Dwelling? MAYBE  

Original Pre-2021 Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: B-0022 
• Allocation Category: 1" & 5/8" RES meters, 4 Parcels 
• Parcel Size: 1.25 acre x 3 parcels + 1.16 acre parcel  
• Existing Dwellings: 1 Primary on 1.16 ac parcel + 1 Primary on 018-0-102-37 (not accounted for in 

allocation) 
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 521 HCF/yr (Stage 3 = 365 HCF/yr) 
• Parcel split: 018-0-102-39 sold separate from other 3 parcels In 2017, allocation was not distributed to 

2nd meter under new program. 

Proposed Allocation split between the 2 meters: 

• 1303 S. La Luna (1 parcel): Existing Fixed: 120 HCF/yr, Variable: 25% of 521 = 96 HCF/yr 
• 1330 S. La Luna (3 parcels): Fixed: 120 HCF/yr, Variable: 75% of 521 = 285 HCF/yr 

Allocation Details for New Primary Dwelling: 

• Parcel Size: 1.25 acre 
• Existing Dwellings: 1 Primary  
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 285 HCF/yr  
• Fixed Base Allocation needed to support a Primary: 120 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to support a primary through drought stages: 140 HCF/yr 

Page 89 of 143



If the dwelling is provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property (3 
parcels) would be as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:   240 HCF/yr 
• New Base Variable Allocation: 145 HCF/yr  

Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed primary dwelling as described in the applicant-provided preliminary 
site plan with the file date 11-1-2022 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 90 of 143



Page 91 of 143



Page 92 of 143



Page 93 of 143



Page 94 of 143



Page 95 of 143



Page 96 of 143



Page 97 of 143



 
 

 

Casitas Standby (Pass-Through) Charge 
 

Meiners Oaks Water District has historically charged its customers a pass-through 
charge to cover the Casitas MWD Standby charges. Most recently, that standby fee has 
been set at $0.72/account/month. The most recent Casitas MWD standby fee increase 
occurred in August 2021, increasing the Casitas MWD standby fee to $1,670.14/month, 
which equates to $1.30/account/month, representing a total of a $0.58 increase since 
MOWD’s fee was last updated in September 2019. The MOWD Board did not charge 
late fees or increase rates between  March 2020 – Jan 2022 due to COVID-19. During 
the most recent audit, this topic was discussed that these pass-through fees be 
reassessed annually.  
 
Recommended Action:  
Increase the MOWD Casitas Standby (pass-through) Fee from $0.72 to $1.30, and 
include all pass-through fees with annual fiscal year rate reviews. 
 

Page 98 of 143



Page 99 of 143



Page 100 of 143



Page 101 of 143



Page 102 of 143



Page 103 of 143



Page 104 of 143



Page 105 of 143



Page 106 of 143



Page 107 of 143



 
 

 
 
 
 

  

Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 

Meiners Oaks Water District 
Municipal Service Review 

Prepared By: 
Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission 
801 S. Victoria Avenue, Suite 301 
Ventura, CA 93003 
Accepted by the Commission on November 16, 2022 

Page 108 of 143



 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Introduction ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
Maps................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Profile ................................................................................................................................................. 5 
Growth and Population Projections................................................................................................... 7 
Review of Municipal Services............................................................................................................. 8 
Sphere of Influence .......................................................................................................................... 13 
Written Determinations ................................................................................................................... 14 

 
  

Page 109 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 1 of 18 

Introduction 

Purpose of the Municipal Service Review  
 
Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCos) exist in each county in California and were 
formed for the purpose of administering state law and local policies relating to the 
establishment and revision of local government boundaries. According to the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (California Government Code § 56000 
et seq.), LAFCo’s purposes are to: 
 

• discourage urban sprawl; 
• preserve open space and prime agricultural land;  
• ensure efficient provision of government services; and  
• encourage the orderly formation and development of local agencies.  

 
To achieve these purposes, LAFCos are responsible for coordinating logical and timely changes 
in local government boundaries (such as annexations), conducting special studies that identify 
ways to reorganize and streamline governmental structure, and determining a sphere of 
influence for each city and special district over which they have authority.  
 
A sphere of influence is a plan for the probable physical boundaries and service area of a local 
agency, as determined by LAFCo (Government Code § 56076). Beginning in 2001, each LAFCo 
was required to review, and as necessary, update the sphere of each city and special district on 
or before January 1, 2008, and every five years thereafter (Government Code § 56425(g)). 
Government Code § 56430(a) provides that in order to determine or update a sphere of 
influence, LAFCo shall prepare a Municipal Service Review (MSR) and make written 
determinations relating to the following seven factors: 
 

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area. 
2. The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities 

within or contiguous to the sphere of influence. 
3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and 

infrastructure needs or deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, 
municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection in any disadvantaged, 
unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence. 

4. Financial ability of agencies to provide services.  
5. Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities. 
6. Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and 

operational efficiencies. 
7. Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by 

Commission policy. 
 
MSRs are not prepared for counties, but are prepared for special districts including those 
governed by a county Board of Supervisors.  Additionally, while LAFCos are authorized to 

Page 110 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 2 of 18 

prepare studies relating to their role as boundary agencies, they have no investigative 
authority.   
 
LAFCo staff prepared this MSR for Meiners Oaks Water District (MOWD or District) using 
information obtained from multiple sources, including, but not limited to: 
 

• MSR Questionnaire:  A questionnaire supplied by LAFCo elicited general information 
about the District (e.g., contact information, governing body, financial information), as 
well as service-specific data;  

• Budget:  The adopted budget provided information regarding services and funding 
levels; 

• General Plans:  The Ventura County General Plan provided information regarding land 
use, populations, and service levels; 

• District Documents:  Various District documents provided supplementary information 
relating to service provision; 

• Historical MSR:  The 2004 MSR provided certain data that remain relevant and accurate 
for inclusion in the current MSR;  

• District Website:  The District’s website provided supplementary and clarifying 
information; and 

• District Staff:  District staff provided supplementary and clarifying information. 
 
Organization of the MSR 
 
This report is organized into several sections, as follows:      
 

• Maps:  A general location map and the official LAFCo map of the District; 
• Profile:  Summary profile of information about the District, including contact 

information, governing body, summary financial information, and staffing levels; 
• Growth and Population Projections:  Details of past, current, and projected population 

for the District;  
• Review of Municipal Services:  Discussion of the municipal services that the District 

provides;  
• Sphere of Influence:  Discussion of the existing sphere of influence of the District and 

potential modifications to the sphere; and 
• Written Determinations:  Recommended determinations for each of the seven 

mandatory factors for the District.  
 
The Commission’s acceptance of the MSR and adoption of written determinations will be 
memorialized through the adoption of a resolution that addresses each of the seven mandatory 
factors based on the Written Determinations section of the MSR.  

Page 111 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 3 of 18 

Maps 

 
 Figure 1:  Location Map 
 

Page 112 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 4 of 18 

 
Figure 2:  Official LAFCo Map 

Page 113 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 5 of 18 

Profile 

The MOWD provides potable water to the unincorporated community of Meiners Oaks, 
immediately west of the City of Ojai.  The District’s water is sourced from groundwater wells 
and the Casitas Municipal Water District (CMWD). 
 
The District’s mission is provided as follows:   
 

To produce and deliver a reliable and sustainable supply of water to meet the needs of the 
residents and properties and the community within its boundaries. 

 
Contact Information 
District Manager Justin Martinez 
District Office 202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, CA  93023 
Mailing Address 202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, CA  93023 
Phone Number (805) 646-2114 
Website meinersoakswater.com 
E-mail Address justin@meinersoakswater.com 

 
Governance Information 
Formation Date February 1, 1949 
Legal Authority Water Code Section 30000 (County Water District Law) 
Type of District Independent 
Board of Directors Five members. 

Elected at-large to staggered, four-year terms of office (elections 
held in even-numbered years). 

Board Meetings 3rd Tuesday of each month, beginning at 6:00 p.m., located at 202 
W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, CA  93023 

 
Services Provided 
The MOWD is authorized to provide potable retail water service. 

 
Population and Area Information 
 Population1 Area (square miles) 
Jurisdictional Area 4,200 2.16 
Sphere of Influence Area 5,000 2.18 

 

 
 
 

 
1 Source:  District staff. 
2 Source:  Current and historical City budget documents, and City staff. 

Staffing – Full Time Equivalent Positions2  
Executive/Management Professional/Support Operational Total 

2 2 2 6 

Page 114 of 143

http://meinersoakswater.com/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayexpandedbranch.xhtml?tocCode=WAT&division=12.&title=&part=&chapter=&article=


 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 6 of 18 

Revenues Expenditures 
Primary Revenue Sources Primary Expenses 
    Water Sales and Meter Charges     Salaries and Benefits 
    Property Taxes     Water Distribution Operations and Projects 
    Interest     Professional Services 
FY 2022-23 Revenues (Budget) FY 2022-23 Expenditures (Budget) 
    $2,055,544     $2,258,5003 

 
Public Agencies with Overlapping Jurisdiction 

  Casitas Municipal Water District Ventura County Service Area No. 14 
Gold Coast Transit District Ventura County Service Area No. 32 
Ojai Valley Sanitary District Ventura County Transportation Commission 
Ventura County Air Pollution Control District Ventura County Watershed Protection District 
Ventura County Fire Protection District Ventura Regional Sanitation District 
Ventura County Resource Conservation District Ventura River Water District 

 

  

 
3 The difference in revenues and expenditures (i.e., $202,956) is to be covered by reserves, resulting in a reduction 
in reserves from $1,420,361 to $1,217,405. 

Page 115 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 7 of 18 

Growth and Population Projections 

LAFCo is required to project the growth and population for the affected area (Government Code 
§ 56430(a)(1)). 
 
According to the District, the estimated population within the District’s jurisdictional boundary 
is 4,200.  Given the trend of a low growth rate and limited opportunities for development 
within its service area and sphere of influence, the District estimates that the maximum future 
population within the existing sphere of influence will be 5,000.   
 
  

Page 116 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 8 of 18 

Review of Municipal Services 

The review of the District’s services is based on provisions of state law which require LAFCo to 
make determinations regarding the present and planned capacity of public facilities, the 
adequacy of public services, infrastructure needs and deficiencies, and the District’s financial 
ability to provide these services (Government Code § 56430(a)(3)). 
 
Water Services 

Service Area and Distribution System 
 
The Meiners Oaks Water District operates and maintains a retail potable water distribution 
system within the unincorporated community of Meiners Oaks, immediately west of the City of 
Ojai.  The MOWD’s jurisdictional area is entirely within the boundaries of the CMWD.  At its 
southern jurisdictional boundary in the vicinity of Rice Road and Baldwin Road, the MOWD 
overlaps the jurisdictional area of the Ventura River Water District (VRWD) (at the northern 
boundary of the VRWD).4  The area of overlap is limited to right-of-way within Rice Road and 
Baldwin Road, within which both districts own water pipelines.  
 
The District has two water sources: (1) groundwater (pumped from the Upper Ventura River 
Groundwater Basin (UVRGB)), and (2) surface water (supplied by the CMWD, as a water 
wholesaler, from its reservoir known as Lake Casitas).5  The MOWD’s water distribution system 
consists of 19 miles of pipeline that serve 1,280 customers.  It owns and operates four wells, 
three pump stations, and three reservoirs, and has two independent connections to the CMWD 
distribution system.  The District’s total available storage capacity is 1.75 million gallons; 
however, actual storage volume fluctuates and averages 1.3 million gallons.  The District 
intends to replace a 80,000-gallon storage tank, which failed in 2018.  In an effort to ensure 
adequate back-up water supply and improve system reliability, the District also plans to pursue 
replacement of a 500,000-gallon storage tank with a 750,000-gallon storage tank.  The District 
relies on groundwater whenever possible, but supplements its supply with surface water 
provided by the CMWD when necessary, during well repair/maintenance activities, and when 
groundwater wells are unable to meet water demand.   

 
Water Supply and Demand 

Water demand within the District’s service area was 643 acre feet (AF) in 2019, 668 AF in 2020, 
and 664 AF in 2021.  Between 2005 and 2021, total annual water demand by the District’s 
customers ranged from approximately 623 AFY to 1,273 acre feet per year (AFY), with demand 
prior to 2014 consistently above 900 AFY and demand since 2014 consistently under 900 AFY.  

 
4 The VRWD is a special district that provides retail potable water to the unincorporated communities of Casitas 
Springs, northern Oak View, and a portion of the City of Ojai near the City’s western boundary. 
5 The Casitas Municipal Water District is a water wholesaler and retailer that supplies water to the Ojai Valley, 
Ventura River valley, and the western portion of the City of San Buenaventura.  The MOWD is a water retailer 
within the MOWD’s service area. 

Page 117 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 9 of 18 

Since 2016, water demand has not exceeded 700 AFY.  The District’s projected total water use 
for its service area is expected to be approximately 620 AFY for the foreseeable future.   
 
District staff anticipates that continued implementation of conservation measures along with 
limited growth within the District will allow water demand to remain consistent with current 
and recent demand.  The District’s water supply consists primarily of groundwater from the 
UVRGB (approximately 76 percent), with remaining supply consisting of surface water from the 
CMWD (approximately 24 percent).  The District has for most of its existence relied exclusively 
on groundwater in order to supply its customers.  Since 2013, it has supplemented 
groundwater with surface water provided by the CMWD.  Greatest water demand typically 
occurs during the month of August, averaging a total of 72 AF during both 2020 and 2021. 
 
Groundwater Supply 

The District’s jurisdictional area includes 
portions of the UVRGB, which is a medium-
priority basin that is not considered by the 
California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) to be in critical overdraft.  The 
UVRGB is overseen by the Upper Ventura 
River Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
(UVRGSA), a Groundwater Sustainability 
Agency (GSA) under the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).6  
Members of the UVRGSA include the 
CMWD, MOWD, VRWD, City of San 
Buenaventura, and County of Ventura.  
Water from the UVRGB is pumped primarily 
by four major water suppliers (i.e., the City 
of San Buenaventura, CMWD, MOWD, and 
VRWD) and three mutual water companies.  
In general, the UVRGB is replenished with 
approximately 10,000 AFY, and is depleted 
of a similar amount.  Flows from the 
Ventura River provide most of the surface 
and subsurface recharge of the UVRGB.  A 
map of the UVRGB underlying the District 
is provided in Figure 3, below. 

          

 
6 The MOWD is a member agency of UVRGSA which is responsible for preparing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan 
(GSP) and managing the UVRGB pursuant to SGMA, with the goal of achieving sustainable groundwater 
management within 20 years of adoption.  The UVRGSA adopted a GSP, which was submitted to and is currently 
undergoing review by the DWR.   
 

Figure 3:  Underlying Groundwater Basin 
Source:  California Department of Water Resources, 2019 

Page 118 of 143

https://uvrgroundwater.org/gsa-formation/public-agencies/
https://uvrgroundwater.org/gsa-formation/public-agencies/
https://uvrgroundwater.org/gsa-formation/public-agencies/


 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 10 of 18 

According to the GSP prepared for the UVRGSA, the estimated storage in the UVRGB varies 
considerably, ranging between 14,000 AF and 35,000 AF.  Groundwater is recharged through 
infiltration of precipitation and percolation from surface water flows, among other sources.  
The District operates four wells and is currently pursuing the addition of a fifth well, which if 
drilled, would decrease the District’s reliance on the CMWD, although to what degree is not yet 
known.  These wells are expected to provide a reliable supply of water, even during drought 
conditions.  While the UVRGB has an estimated capacity of between 14,000 AF and 35,000 AF, 
actual groundwater supply for the District is unknown and the District is studying this topic to 
determine the volume of groundwater available to it. 
 
Surface Water Supply 

The District’s surface water supply is sourced from the CMWD, through two 4-inch connections.  
Surface water contained in Lake Casitas is currently estimated to be 74,811 AF,7 which is used 
to supply the CMWD’s retail customers and retail water purveyors. The CMWD establishes a 
maximum annual delivery water volume to MOWD based on factors including but not limited to 
current drought conditions.  Maximum delivery volume by the CMWD to the MOWD is 
currently 713.49 AFY, as a result of Stage 3 drought conditions, which is consistent with the 
CMWD’s maximum delivery volume to the MOWD over the past three years.  MOWD is not 
required to prepare an Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP); however, information 
contained in the UWMP prepared for the CMWD (adopted June 23, 2021) states that the 
CMWD service area is not expected to experience significant growth over the next 20 years 
(estimated population in 2020 within the CMWD service area was 11,042 and projected 
population in 2040 is 11,281).   
 
Capital Improvement Projects 

To meet continued water demands within the District’s service area, the District is currently 
pursuing several capital improvement projects to be implemented over the next several years:  
(1) replacement of its 30-year-old treatment plant, located at 15145 Maricopa Highway, which 
is reaching the end of its useful life and is experiencing corrosion ($4 million maximum, to be 
completed within the next approximately 18 months), (2) development of a new well ($1 
million maximum), (3) installation of a back-up generator (Meiners Road) ($500,000 maximum), 
and (4) chloramination (i.e., a disinfection process) of Well Nos. 4 and 7, which would allow the 
District to blend well water with surface water supplied by the CMWD (estimated $150,000).  In 
2018, the District replaced Well No. 4 with Well No. 4A ($447,954), which was funded by the 
District’s ratepayers and District reserve funds.  Funding for all of these anticipated capital 
improvement projects is anticipated to consist of grants and customer rate increases. 
 
On June 30, 2022, the District approved rate increases pursuant to Proposition 218, in order to 
help fund several projects and activities, including the replacement of the District’s water 
treatment plant, replacement of a water tank, upgrade a pressure zone to improve fire flow 
reliability, legal defense involving the UVRGB adjudication.  The rate increase will consist of an 

 
7 The capacity of Lake Casitas is approximately 237,761 AF.  The lake is currently 31.4 percent full. 

Page 119 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 11 of 18 

increase in customers’ monthly Water Availability Charge from $35.91 to $36.00, an increase in 
the cost per hundred cubic feet (HCF) of water from $2.34/HCF to $3.85/HCF, and an increase 
in the over-allocation charge from $1/HCF to $5/HCF.  The average increase for a residential 
customer is expected to be $22.74 (for a total average water bill of $98.32 for an average 
residential customer).  
 
Because the District serves fewer than 3,000 customers and less than 3,000 AFY, it does not 
qualify as an urban water supplier and, as such, is not required, every five years, to prepare and 
adopt an UWMP pursuant to the Urban Water Management Planning Act enacted by the 
California State Legislature in 1983.8  Therefore, a comprehensive and up-to-date discussion of 
current and expected water supply and demand, supply reliability, and water shortage 
contingency planning and conservation efforts is not regularly consolidated into a single report 
that is easily accessible to the public.   
 
Water Master Plan 
 
The District does not currently operate in accordance with a water master plan.  However, it is 
currently working toward developing a water master plan, to be completed over the next two 
years.  The master plan will guide the District’s actions related to operation, maintenance, and 
infrastructure improvements to meet its service needs, and reflect current water supply and 
demand figures, infrastructure, population, and capital improvement needs.  The District 
anticipates pursuing grant funding to partially defray the cost of master plan preparation.  Upon 
completion, it would be prudent for the District to post a copy of the master plan on its 
website, and/or formal reporting/updates that are easily accessible to the public.   
 
Water Conservation Measures and Efforts 

The District does not implement its own water shortage contingency plan, but in accordance 
with its water service agreement with the CMWD, it implements mandatory use restrictions for 
drought conditions as prescribed by the CMWD that are established in the CMWD’s Water 
Efficiency Allocation Plan (WEAP).  The CMWD Board of Directors adopted a resolution on May 
11, 2022, to continue implementation of Stage 3 (30 percent) conservation levels through the 
summer of 2022.  The WEAP includes provisions and requirements, based on the established 
level of drought (Stages 1 through 5), with each stage building upon the requirements of the 
prior stage: 
 

• Under Stage 1, reduction measures include a voluntary demand reduction of 20 percent, 
the requirement for use of shutoff nozzles, and prohibition against rinsing of sidewalks, 
driveways, and public roadways.   

• Under Stage 2, the District requires a 20-percent reduction in water demand, enforces a 
moratorium on new water connections, restricts watering to two times per week 
between the hours of 6 am and 9 am (but prohibits watering during or within 48 hours 
of a rain event), and requires that plumbing leaks be repaired within 48 hours.   

 
8 Water supply and demand by the District is generally acknowledged in the UWMP prepared by the CMWD.   

Page 120 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 12 of 18 

• Under Stage 3, the District requires a 30-percent reduction in water demand, restricts 
watering to one time per week and prohibits the use of potable water for dust control.   

• Under Stage 4, the District requires a 40-percent reduction in water demand, prohibits 
the filling of new swimming pools and fountains, temporary construction meters, and 
watering of lawns, and allows the District to consider prohibiting water use for 
agricultural purposes.    

• Under Stage 5, the District requires a 50-percent reduction in water demand, all outdoor 
watering, including for agricultural use, is prohibited.   

 
Given the current and predicted drought condition, persistent decline of the water volume in 
Lake Casitas will potentially result in the imposition of additional conservation measures and 
the risk of the lake going dry. 
 
Additionally, the District supports water-saving projects through its involvement with the Land 
Resilience Partnership (LRP)/Wildlife Conservation Board.  The programs involve 
implementation of various water-wise projects, including installation of water-efficient 
landscaping and tools to accomplish rainwater containment.  The LRP provides services 
including professional site assessment, cataloging of potential recommendations for potential 
site opportunities/projects, plan design, construction guidance, neighborhood training, rebates, 
and discounted services.  These efforts are supported through grant funding provided by the 
DWR, Wildlife Conservation Board, among other local organizations.  While the District 
coordinates access to the LRP programs, in most cases the LRP provides services directly to the 
District’s customers.  During the coming year, the District anticipates offering collaborative 
workshops and customer outreach programs related to the LRP.     
 
 

  

Page 121 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 13 of 18 

Sphere of Influence 

Based on an evaluation of the District’s sphere of influence, several adjustments to the sphere 
appear to be warranted.  The spheres (and jurisdictional areas) of the MOWD and the VRWD 
overlap in the public road right-of-way along Rice Road and Baldwin Road.  Each of these 
districts contains pipeline infrastructure in the roadway; however, each district’s infrastructure 
is limited to the side of the road closest to the service area of that district.  Amendment of the 
District’s sphere would eliminate overlap with the sphere of the VRWD (a coordinating 
reduction in the sphere of the VRWD would address the remaining area of overlap), resulting in 
a sphere boundary that runs along the centerline of the road in the area where each district’s 
infrastructure is limited to its side of the road right-of-way.  In addition, reduction of the 
District’s sphere to remove the southern portion of Cruzero Road would better reflect the 
District’s reach because this area does not contain any water distribution pipelines and is not 
expected to be used for MOWD infrastructure in the foreseeable future.  Finally, removal of a 
10-acre parcel from the sphere near the north end of the District’s service area would result in 
the exclusion of a parcel that is designated by the County General Plan for open space use, is 
being used as an orchard and not for urban purposes, does not receive water service from the 
District, and is not anticipated by the District to receive District services.  These modifications 
are depicted in Figure 4, below.  The existing sphere of influence boundary otherwise continues 
to reflect the District’s current and probable service area, and is justified based on this MSR 
report, which demonstrates that the District has the ability to provide urban services at 
acceptable levels.   
 

 
Figure 4:  Sphere of influence recommended reduction  

Page 122 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 14 of 18 

Written Determinations 

The Commission is required to prepare a written statement of its determinations with respect 
to each of the subject areas provided below (Government Code § 56430(a)). 
 
1. Growth and population projections for the affected area 

According to the District, the estimated population within the District’s jurisdictional 
boundary is 4,200.  Given the trend of a low growth rate and limited opportunities for 
development within its service area and sphere of influence, the District estimates that the 
maximum future population within the existing sphere of influence will be 5,000.   

 
2. The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within 

or contiguous to the sphere of influence 

A disadvantaged unincorporated community is defined as a community with an annual 
median household income that is less than 80 percent of the statewide annual median 
household income (Government Code § 56033.5).  No disadvantaged unincorporated 
communities are located within or contiguous to the District’s sphere of influence.  
According to Ventura LAFCo Commissioner’s Handbook Section 3.2.5, Ventura LAFCo has 
identified Nyeland Acres (within the City of Oxnard’s sphere of influence to the north of the 
city), the Piru community, and Saticoy (within the City of San Buenaventura’s sphere of 
influence to the east of the city) as disadvantaged unincorporated communities. 

 
3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and 

infrastructure needs or deficiencies  

Water services: 
• The District operates and maintains a retail domestic water distribution system for the 

community of Meiners Oaks.   
• The District’s water sources consist of groundwater pumped from water wells owned by 

the District and surface water from the Casitas Municipal Water District (which is both a 
water wholesaler and retailer).  The District’s current water supply is adequate to meet 
current demands.   

• Water demand within the District’s service area was 643 acre feet (AF) in 2019, 668 AF 
in 2020, and 664 AF in 2021.  Between 2005 and 2021, total annual water demand by 
the District’s customers ranged from approximately 623 AFY to 1,273 AFY, with demand 
prior to 2014 consistently above 900 AFY and demand since 2014 consistently under 900 
AFY.  Since 2016, total water demand has not exceeded 700 AFY.   

• The District’s projected total water use for its service area is expected to be 
approximately 620 AFY for the foreseeable future.   

• To improve its transparency, the District should consider formalizing its water use 
projections for normal years, single-dry years, and multiple-dry years, and making this 
information available on its website. 

Page 123 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 15 of 18 

• The District’s total available storage capacity is 1.75 million gallons; however, actual 
storage volume fluctuates and averages 1.3 million gallons.  The District intends to 
replace a 80,000-gallon storage tank, which failed in 2018.  In an effort to ensure 
adequate back-up water supply and improve system reliability, the District also plans to 
pursue replacement of a 500,000-gallon storage tank with a 750,000-gallon storage 
tank.   

• The District is pursuing several capital improvement project over the next several years, 
including replacement of its 30-year-old treatment plant, located at 15145 Maricopa 
Highway, which is reaching the end of its useful life and is experiencing corrosion         
($4 million maximum, to be completed within the next approximately 18 months), 
development of a new well ($1 million maximum), installation of a back-up generator 
(Meiners Road) ($500,000 maximum), and chloramination (i.e., a disinfection process) of 
Well Nos. 4 and 7, which would allow the District to blend well water with surface water 
supplied by the Casitas Municipal Water District (estimated $150,000).  Funding for all of 
these anticipated capital improvement projects is anticipated to consist of grants and 
customer rate increases.  In 2018, the District replaced Well No. 4 with Well No. 4A 
($447,954), and it is pursuing development of a new well which is estimated to cost      
$1 million. 

• The District is equipped with back-up generators at its well sites and pump stations to 
enable its facilities to be operated during a power outage. 

 
4. Financial ability of agencies to provide services 

• The District has a balanced budget, and appears to have the ability to finance the 
services it currently provides.  

• The District has a steady stream of revenue through service charges collected from its 
customers, property taxes, and interest.  It has predictable expenses related to capital 
outlay and salaries/benefits.   

• The District has a policy to maintain a minimum of $600,000 in reserves.  The District 
currently has a balance of $1,420,361 in reserves, and therefore is in compliance with its 
reserves policy. 

• The District has a five-year capital improvement plan that includes water system 
improvements (e.g., replacement of the District’s treatment plant and development of a 
new well).  Two percent of the capital improvement plan is currently funded, and the 
remaining amount is expected to be funded by ratepayers and grants.  . 

• The District is independently audited on a regular basis.  According to the District, the 
most recent audit (October 29, 2021) prepared for the District was unqualified.  An 
unqualified opinion is an independent auditor's judgment that a company's financial 
statements are fairly and appropriately presented, without any identified exceptions, 
and in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  

• Based on information that the Ventura County Special Districts Association provided the 
County in January 2021, the District has not experienced financial impacts related to the 
coronavirus.   

 

Page 124 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 16 of 18 

5. Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities 

• The District shares training activities with the Ventura River Water District (e.g., First 
Aid), and is exploring additional shared training programs.  

• The Study of Special Districts in Ventura County: An Analysis with Recommendations for 
Changes of Organization prepared by the Ventura County Executive Office in 1972 
recommended that a committee be formed to “evaluate unification of retail water 
service in the Ventura River Drainage Area.”  Although the MOWD appointed a 
representative to the committee, no record of committee activities or reorganization 
studies exist.   

• The Special Districts Study prepared by LAFCo in 2001 recommended that the MOWD 
consider consolidating with the VRWD or CMWD; however, such a consolidation was 
never pursued.  

• The MSR prepared by LAFCo in 2004 for water and wastewater agencies within Ventura 
County recommended that: (1) LAFCo should consider the reorganization of water 
purveyors in the Ojai Valley, and either: (a) LAFCo should form a reorganization 
committee composed of representatives from the governing bodies of each of the 
affected agencies and from other entities as determined by the Commission, or (b) the 
water agencies in the Ojai Valley should independently form a reorganization committee 
and present a report to LAFCo, and (2) government restructuring options for water 
service in the Ojai Valley should include an analysis of private and mutual water service 
providers and participation by representatives of the City of Ojai and the Ojai Valley 
Sanitary District.  It does not appear that such further study toward reorganization of 
water service providers within the Ojai Valley was pursued. 

• The 2004 MSR further stated that: (1) the service areas of the MOWD and VRWD are 
adjacent and have developed independent and occasionally duplicative facilities (i.e., 
these agencies both have pipeline running along certain roadway segments), and there 
are no interties between the two systems, and (2) consolidation of the MOWD and 
VRWD could provide the advantage of pooling staff, facilities, technology and other 
resources to achieve more streamlined service provision and improved economies of 
scale.  The 2004 MSR acknowledged an apparent lack of interest in and effort toward 
consolidation, given that no perceptible progress has been made in that direction since 
the idea was first floated in 1972.   

• The circumstances that prompted the initial discussion of reorganization among water 
agencies in the Ojai Valley have not changed since 1972, and the opportunity for 
consolidation of agencies continues to exist.  Obstacles toward consolidation with the 
CMWD include CMWD’s current focus on water supply concerns related to drought 
conditions and new responsibilities following its acquisition in 2017 of the City of Ojai 
service area.  Challenges for consolidation with VRWD may include issues related to 
water rights, physical limitations of the water systems, differences in rate structures, 
and interest level of the districts’ governing bodies.  MOWD should again consider 
pursuit of consolidation with the VRWD and/or the CMWD.  Within five years, LAFCo 
should re-evaluate the readiness of the districts for consolidation, and initiate such a 

Page 125 of 143



 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 17 of 18 

proposal if it deems appropriate and if none has been proposed by the agencies 
involved.  

 
6. Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and 

operational efficiencies 

• The District is accountable to its constituents through its elected Board of Directors, 
adherence to applicable government code sections, open and accessible meetings, and 
dissemination of information. 

• The District has adapted to the changing needs of public access as a result of the disease 
caused by the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, by providing live internet access 
and public participation opportunities for its meetings.  

• The District is equipped with emergency generators at the well sites and pump stations 
for the purpose of providing back-up power.  Additionally, it is pursuing installation of 
an additional back-up generator. 

• The District plans to improve its accountability for community service needs by 
developing a water master plan.   

• The District maintains a website that includes a history and basic information about the 
District, a mission statement, a map of the district, current and recent Board of 
Directors meeting agendas, staff reports, and minutes, current and historical budget 
information, policies, procedures, resolutions, and ordinances, an online bill-pay 
function, water allocation calculator, news and updates, miscellaneous information 
(e.g., water quality reports, conservation tips, drought status information), and the State 
Controller’s “By the Numbers” (agency financial reporting information) and “Public Pay” 
(employee salary) webpages.  The District could improve its transparency by posting on 
its website current and historical audits, a summary of historical, current, and 
anticipated water supply and demand (including a breakdown by source of water (i.e., 
groundwater and CMWD)), recording and archiving Board meetings to be available on 
the District’s website, its enabling legislation, its master plan (once developed), its 
capital improvement plan, the most recent municipal service review completed by 
LAFCo, and a Spanish translation option for its website content.  

• The District achieves operational efficiencies through shared training activities with the 
VRWD.  It also participates in the California Special District Risk Management Authority 
(which provides insurance coverage, training programs, and other practical resources 
for public agencies) and contracts with private providers (e.g., local engineering 
contractors for water system repairs).   

• The District is not required to prepare an UWMP; however, some limited information 
regarding its water supply and demand is contained within the CMWD UWMP.  The 
District should consider posting a link on its website to the CMWD UWMP, as well as 
providing historical and current usage and supply figures on its website. 

• The District should consider participation in the California Water/Wastewater Agency 
Response Network WARN (CALWARN) program (which supports and promotes 
statewide emergency preparedness, disaster response, and mutual assistance processes 

Page 126 of 143

http://www.sdrma.org/
http://www.calwarn.org/
http://www.calwarn.org/


 
Meiners Oaks Water District – Municipal Service Review  

November 16, 2022 
Page 18 of 18 

for public and private water and wastewater utilities in coordination with the State 
Office of Emergency Services). 

• The Ventura County Grand Jury released a document entitled Final Report – 
Independent Special Districts (April 26, 2018), which was the result of an investigation 
by the Grand Jury into the transparency and public accountability of independent 
special districts within the County.  The Grand Jury identified opportunities for 
improvement in these subject areas and required a response from the District.  The 
District’s response stated that the requested information is available on the District’s 
website. 

• Additional discussion regarding governmental structure and operational efficiencies is 
provided in the written determinations above concerning shared facilities. 

• District staff was responsive in providing information for this MSR during the requested 
timeframe. 

 
7. Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by 

Commission policy 

• The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) of 2014 requires the formation 
of local groundwater sustainability agencies (GSAs) for high- or medium-priority water 
basins, as determined by the state. GSAs are required to evaluate local water basin 
conditions and develop groundwater sustainability plans (GSPs). The purpose of a GSP is 
to define sustainability for an individual basin and establish a path toward sustainability 
by 2040 for high-priority basins, and 2042 for medium-priority basins.  The UVRGB is 
listed as a medium-priority basin, pursuant to the State Department of Water 
Resources.  The Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency is the GSA for the UVRGB, 
and was formed through a joint powers agreement among the CMWD, MOWD, VRWD, 
the City of San Buenaventura, and the County of Ventura.  The GSP prepared for the 
UVRGB in January 2022 is currently undergoing review by the DWR. 

• In 2014, the Santa Barbara ChannelKeeper, a nonprofit organization with the mission to 
protect and restore the Santa Barbara Channel and its watersheds, sued the State Water 
Resources Control Board (an agency responsible for preserving, enhancing, and 
restoring the quality of California’s water resources) and the City of San Buenaventura, 
in an effort to require that the State Water Resources Control Board conduct further 
study (a “Reasonable Use Analysis”) of the City of San Buenaventura’s use of water from 
the Ventura River (i.e., alleged overpumping of the river).  According to the Santa 
Barbara ChannelKeeper, the City has currently and historically overpumped water from 
the river.  In its response to the litigation, the City denied it has overpumped water from 
the Ventura River, and filed a cross-complaint against other surface water and 
groundwater users in the Ventura River Watershed, including the CMWD, MOWD, and 
VRWD.  As of the date of this document, the issue remains unresolved and adjudication 
of the Ventura River Watershed is pending.   

 

Page 127 of 143

https://vcportal.ventura.org/GDJ/docs/reports/2017-18/GrandJuryReport_2017-2018_IndependentSpecialDistricts.pdf
https://vcportal.ventura.org/GDJ/docs/reports/2017-18/GrandJuryReport_2017-2018_IndependentSpecialDistricts.pdf


Page 128 of 143



Page 129 of 143



Page 130 of 143



Page 131 of 143



Page 132 of 143



Page 133 of 143



Page 134 of 143



Page 135 of 143



Page 136 of 143



Page 137 of 143



November 2022 

 1 

 
 
District Summary/Update 
 

 
•  Casitas Lake Level: 30.3%   12/14/2022   
•    Purchased Water: MOWD is 100% on Casitas as of 9/2/2022 
•  Wells: Off Line 
•     Grant Funding: 1st round of Income Survey letters has gone out  
                                  Well Feasibility Study, Land Resiliency Partnership Projects, Advanced Metering Infrastructure (Grant Agreement has been presented) 
 
• Seasonal Rain Fall Totals:  Casitas Dam            7.41” 

                                               Matilija Dam            10.71” 
                                               Stewart Canyon       5.61” 
                                               Nordhoff Ridge        13.39” 
 

•   GIS Mapping: GIS mapping of the district has been Completed. Staff is currently attaching current info to each asset 
• Treatment Plant Project: MKN & Associates are working towards final design 
• Well Sighting Study: In Progress; Hopkins Groundwater Consultants, Inc. Water quality samples have been taken at Ranchitos Wells                        

and OVLC well on Besant Rd 
 
 

 
Scheduled/Unscheduled Work 

Type of Work Cause Date Location Contractor Amount $ 

100% ON Casitas Drought 9/2/2022    

DAC Survey Letters 1st Round 11/29/2022 MOWD Kennedy 
Communications 

$12,075.00 
Grant 

Funded 
Well Siting Study; In Progress  Drought  MOWD Hopkins  

GIS Data Entry   MOWD Staff  

 
 
 

Page 138 of 143



November 2022 

 2 

 
 

Current Well Levels and Specific Capacity 
 

WELL #1 DEC 
21’ 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

STATIC (ft) 26.6 24.9 31.5 31.1 30.6 35.3 36.75 37.85 N/A 36.80 35.90 34.95 23.2 
RUNNING (ft) OFF 31.5 37.3 37.8 37.3 42.7 45 41.8 42.25 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 6.6 5.8 6.7 6.7 7.4 8.25 3.95 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 276 261 269 261 224 172 134 97 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 41.8 45 40.15 38.96 30.27 20.85 33.92 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 
              

WELL #2 DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
STATIC (ft) 25.95 24.6 30.5 31.1 30.9 34.95 36.8 39.5 N/A 37.4 34 34 23.5 

RUNNING (ft) OFF 36.15 44.2 42.7 39.3 41.15 58.5 43.2 58.8 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 11.55 13.7 11.6 8.4 6.2 21.7 3.7 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 209 194 172 157 74.8 89 59 52 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 18.1 14.16 14.83 18.7 12.06 4.14 15.95 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 

              
WELL #4 DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

STATIC (ft) 52.3 28.8 31.2 32.5 34.8 39.2 51.7 61.2 N/A 69.30 66.8 63.8 54.8 
RUNNING (ft) OFF 54.9 56.9 60 59.4 63.4 74.7 103.5 78.7 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 26.1 25.7 27.5 24.6 24.2 23 42.3 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 380 382 390 377 361 334 273 178 OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 14.5 14.86 14.18 15.33 14.92 14.52 6.45 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 
              

WELL #7 DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
STATIC (ft) 55 19.8 24.5 26.95 31.2 38.95 54.4 63.8 N/A 72.30 69.5 66.5 57.45 

RUNNING (ft) OFF 23.7 28.15 30.65 34.55 42.6 59.6 68.95 74.1 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 3.95 3.65 3.7 3.35 3.65 5.2 5.15 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 336 332 342 321 309 281 273 195 OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 85 90.96 92.43 95.82 84.66 54.04 53.01 N/A OFF OFF OFF OFF 

              
WELL #8 DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

STATIC (ft) 65.5 46 51.55 54.8 57.7 62.9 67.1 71 73.50 75.20 76.5 75.9 58.2 
RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF OFF 
 

Page 139 of 143



November 2022 

 3 

 
 

Water Pumped, Sold, Purchased & Water Sales  
MONTH PUMPED (AF) SOLD (AF) PURCHASED (AF) WATER SALES 

($) 
2022 JAN 31.61 32.73 5.67 $27,558.18 

FEB 46.91 42.54 0.00 $43,304.04 
MAR 51.63 46.99 0.00 $47,874.06 
APR 52.30 41.27 0.00 $41,677.74 
MAY 59.56 54.39 0.00 $45,566.68 
JUN 66.59 58.50 0.00 $59,471.10 
JUL 71.51 66.96 1.74 $68,164.20 

AUG 65.83 68.31 6.55 $114,437.40 
SEP 4.12 66.18 65.42 $110,857.55 
OCT 0.47 60.02 58.38 $100,581.25 
NOV 0.27 45.86 45.59 $76,853.70 

YTD 2022 450.80 583.75 183.35 $736,345.90 
TOTAL 2021 411.94 640.95 266.57 $648,269.32 
TOTAL 2020 485.71 635.47 197.26 $657,912.06 

 
Reserve Funds 

* Balance at the County of Ventura                                                                              $ 1,315,508.94 
 
Total Taxes                                              $ 5,351.56 
 
Total Interest from reserve account#                                                                                                    $ 0.00 

 
Fiscal Year Total Revenues 

July 1st – November  30th                                     2021                                                                $ 791,272.08 

 
July 1st – November  30th                                      2022                                                        $ 965,881.86 

 
 
 

Page 140 of 143



November 2022 

 4 

 
 

 
 

Bank Balances 
* LAIF Balance                                           $ 231,589.45 
Transferred from L.A.I.F. to General                                                                                                        $ 0.00 
(#) Quarterly Interest from LAIF                                                                                $0.00 
 
* Money Market (Mechanics Bank)                                                          $ 7,624.26 
 
Amount Transferred to Mechanics from County this month                                                      
Amount Transferred to General Fund from Money Market                                                                       $ 0.00 
Monthly Interest received from Money Market                                                                 $ .13 
 
General Fund Balance                                          $ 186,171.65 
 
Trust Fund Balance                                $ 7,422.22 
 
* Capital Improvement Fund                                           $ 13,846.67 
 
 (#) Quarterly Interest from Capital Account                                                                  $ .11 
 
 Total Interest accrued                                                                                            $ 0.24  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 141 of 143



Board Secretary Report – December 2022 

                Board Secretary Report 

December 2022 

1. Administrative 
• The 2022 summary of staff training shows a total of 115 courses completed (both in person and 

online), compared to 17 completed in 2021. Participation in MARS Safety Beta Program, 
leveraging our free Target Solutions online training portal, and involvement in a local cohort of 
water agencies for in-person sessions have been the main difference. 

• Income Survey – first round of mailers sent out two weeks ago, Kennedy Communications will 
be sending out a 2nd wave of surveys in the next couple weeks. Kennedy Communications 
expects to finish up the survey and results by mid-January 2023. 
 

2. Financial (any items not covered in separate Financials Report) 

a. Financial Audit FY 21-22 in progress. – Fanning & Karrh, CPA. 
b. Accounts Receivable –SB 998 timeline for disconnects for non-payment (>$200 @ 60 days) is 

in effect. Late fees and District past-due processes resumed as of March 26, 2022. As of 
December 15, 2022, no accounts have been shut off for non-payment. 
 

3. Billing/Customer Service 

Month #Total 
Service 
Orders 

# Account 
Owner 

Changes 

Monthly 
Customer Bill 

Total 

Over-
Allocation 

 $ (drought) 

Other 
Conservation 

Penalties 
Nov 21 52 15 $141,776.01 $3,094.00 $0 
Dec 21 53 6 $141,663.91 $3,002.00 $0 
Jan 22 110 5 $110,228.55 $882.00 $0 
Feb 22 72 10 $124,078.38 $4,993.00 $0 
Mar 22 80 7 $123,073.26 $5,308.00 $0 
Apr 22 72 14 $113,351.51 $2,131.00 $0 

May 22 101 6 $129,660.69 $2,294.00 $0 
Jun 22 68 7 $133,628.56 $4,311.00 $0 
Jul 22 110 6 $142,448.60 $4,095.00 $100 

Aug 22 109 8 $195,707.04 $5,236.00 $0 
Sep 22 81 6 $211,050.86 $28,070.00 $0 
Oct 22 81 6 $214,082.52 $35,420.00 $0 
Nov 22 78 5 $174,076.68 $19,655.00 $0 

• Over-Allocation charges for September 2022 reflect the rate increase from $1 to $5 and multiple 
customer leaks during the billing period. 

 

 

Board of Directors 

Page 142 of 143



Board Secretary Report – December 2022 

 Board Member Position Term Ends Term Type 
Michel Etchart President 2026 Long Term (Re-elected 2022) 

Christian Oakland Vice President 2024 Long Term (Elected 2020) 
James Kentosh Director 2026 Long Term (Re-elected 2022) 
Christy Cooper Director 2024 Appointed May 9, 2022, Re-

elect for 2 yr term to 2024 
Joe Pangea Director 2026 Long Term (Elected 2022) 

Loni Anderson Director 2022 Appointed July 2021, term 
ends 12/21/22 

   

November 8, 2022, Elections Official Final Results: 

• Mike Etchart: 28.71% 
• Joe Pangea:  25.83% 
• Jim Kentosh:  24.02% 
• Helena Pasquarella: 21.45% 

 
4. Projects 

a. Policy & Procedure, Resolution & Ordinance web posting – in progress. 
• Financial Audit recommended policies and procedures – ad hoc committee 

b. Board Bylaws – Draft prepared and ready for Board review/approval. 
c. Employee Handbook – Draft in process. 

 
5. Complaints & Compliments 

 

Recommended Actions:  Receive an update from the Board Secretary concerning miscellaneous matters 
and District correspondence. Provide feedback to staff. 

Attachments:  None.  

 

  

  

Page 143 of 143


	Item 1 MOWD Regular Board Agenda 12-20-2022
	Item 3a OATH OF OFFICE 2022 Etchart
	Item 3b OATH OF OFFICE 2022 Kentosh
	Item 3c OATH OF OFFICE 2022 Cooper
	Item 3d OATH OF OFFICE 2022 Pangea
	Item 4 11-15-22 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Item 7a Income 1122
	Item 7b Expenditures 1122
	Item 7c AP Report 111622-121522
	Item 7d Board Financial Graphs
	Income & Expense Graphs

	Item 8b Dutter Leak DSUR Request 11-17-22_Redacted
	Item 8c RESOLUTION 20221220 Adoption of New Meters & Expansion of Services Policy
	Resolution 20221220
	PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of December 2022.
	___________________________    ____________________________

	Item 8c1 New Meters and Expansion of Services Policy FINAL v2 2022
	Applicant Information:
	Project Information:
	Type of Construction:
	Description of Project:

	Item 8d1 Will Serve Review_235 N La Luna_Oct11_22_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	New Primary Dwelling for Property with Existing Meter at 235 N. La Luna Ave.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES
	Recommendation


	Item 8d1a MOW_LemieuxWillServe_9_22_Redacted
	Item 8d2 ADAMS - 22-0623 - ISSUED FOR PERMIT_Redacted
	Item 8d3 Will Serve Review_143 S. Padre Juan_Oct28_22_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	Existing ADU (unaccounted) for Property with Existing Meter at 143 S. Padre Juan
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES
	Recommendation


	Item 8d4 143 S. Padre Juan Will Serve Request Packet_Redacted
	Item 8d5 143 S. Padre Juan Site Plans
	Item 8d6 Will Serve Review_221 N Poli_Oct28_22_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	New ADU for Property with Existing Meter at 221 N. Poli.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES
	Recommendation


	Item 8d7 221 N. Ploi St   Will Serve Request_Redacted
	Item 8d7a 221 N. Poli  JADU  Will Serve Letter Cmte Packet_Redacted
	Item 8d8 Will Serve Review_649 S La Luna_Oct28_22_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	Garage to ADU conversion for Property with Existing Meter at 649 S. La Luna.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot?  YES
	Recommendation


	Item 8d9 649 S La Luna Will Serve Request Packet 10-20-2022_Redacted
	Item 8d9a 935 Devereux Will Serve Cmte Packet_Redacted
	ADP5478.tmp
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	Garage Conversion to ADU for Property with Existing Meter at 935 Devereux.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation



	Item 8d9b1330 S. La Luna Will Serve Cmte Packet_Redacted
	ADP3520.tmp
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	New 1,600 sqft Primary Dwelling for Property with Existing Meter at 1330 S. La Luna.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation



	Item 8e Casitas Standby Fee
	Item 8f Fanning Required Communication Letter 11-10-22
	Item 8ga LAFCo 22-23S Resolution
	Item 8gb MOWD MSR (2022-11-16)
	Introduction
	Maps
	Profile
	Growth and Population Projections
	Review of Municipal Services
	Water Services

	Sphere of Influence
	Written Determinations
	1. Growth and population projections for the affected area
	2. The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence
	3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or deficiencies
	4. Financial ability of agencies to provide services
	5. Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities
	6. Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies
	7. Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by Commission policy


	Item 8gc Resolution Meiners Oaks Water District MSR
	Item 9 November 2022 G.M. Report
	Item 10 Board Secretary Report December 2022



